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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Asian
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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COMPANY PROFILE
N Rl

ASIAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (Stock Code: 8295) is a
leading corporate advisory services company that is listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
with its headquarters based in Hong Kong, providing a diversified
range of corporate advisory services covering:

e Corporate Resumption

e Mergers and Acquisitions

e Acting as IPO Sponsors and Compliance Advisers
e Litigation Support and Distressed Asset Recovery

In addition, the Group assists clients in fund raising, deals in
securities as agent and invests in securities and other financial
assets as principal.

The Group was established in 1998. Asian Capital (Corporate
Finance) Limited, its principal operating subsidiary, is licensed
with the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong for
type 1 (dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities), type
6 (advising on corporate finance) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities.

In 2003, Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited established
a representative office in Shanghai under the auspices of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission — one of a few Hong
Kong based corporate finance houses that have obtained this
status. The Shanghai representative office helps to establish and
maintain client contacts and to develop business.

In respect of the Corporate Resumption business, Asian Capital
(Corporate Finance) Limited has led and concluded no less than
25 cases of long suspended companies to resume trading of their
shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. It has consistently
ranked as the top most active advisory firm in this area.

Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited has expertise in
Mergers and Acquisitions activities in particular very substantial
acquisitions and disposals under the Listing Rules, constantly
assisting its clients in optimizing its investment, asset injection
and disposal objectives.
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Focusing on quality smaller capitalization issues, Asian Capital
(Corporate Finance) Limited has helped to list a number of
main board IPOs as well as its parent company for a GEM
listing in June 2010. With the support of one of its substantial
shareholders Phillip Capital (HK) Limited and other business
associates, the Group is able to bring in pre-IPO private equity
investors and offer underwriting and distribution capabilities to

assist IPO candidates and listed issuers.

The Group’s Litigation Support and Distressed Asset Recovery
have unsurpassed regulatory knowledge and insolvency expertise.
This core business has assisted clients and lenders to achieve
mutually rewarding recoveries.

Further information about the Asian Capital Group, including
its management profile and track records, is available on the
Company’s website at www.asiancapital.com.hk.
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Suite 1006

Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road
Central

Hong Kong

SHANGHAI REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

Suite 1504

Tomson Commercial Building

No. 710 Dongfang Road, Pudong
Shanghai 200122

The People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MaplesFS Limited

(formerly known as Maples Finance Limited)
P.O. Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman lIslands

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

VC Capital Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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UBS AG

WEBSITE

www.asiancapital.com.hk

STOCK CODE
8295

ORATE INFORMATION
A& K

ERERIT
BELGEERITERDA]
RGIRITARAF
FPERT (BR) BRAA
BEERITHER AR

I iRTT

LN

www.asiancapital.com.hk

BRAD 5%
8295

Annual Report 2012
- 7
e L



Asian Capital Holdings ki
—%‘—Eﬁl"ﬁﬁﬁ%%

& ""' :

N S R

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Asian Capital
Limited (the
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012

Holdings “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(the “Financial Year").

BUSINESS REVIEW

Capital markets in the year 2012 were largely fueled by the
United States’ (the “US"”) monetary easing, the People’s Republic
of China’s gradual fiscal relaxation and European Central Bank’s
provision of more liquidity to rescue the weaker countries in
reaction to the European debt crisis. Towards the end of the
year, Japan, with its persistent recession, joined the wagon in
releasing liquidity and helped the Hang Seng Index advance
in 2012 by approximately 23%. Yet funds raised through the
Hong Kong equities market shrinked by approximately 38% on
a year on year basis, reflecting the cautious approach that both
investors and listed issuers took in fund raising and mergers and
acquisitions (“M&A") activities. With prevalent low interest rates,
capital flows moved towards real estates, precipitating the Hong
Kong government to introduce further taxes seeking to curb the
overheated properties sector.

Surplus liquidity and low interest cost also helped the survival
of financially stressed companies, with long suspension of listed
corporates during 2012 more for reason of regulatory issues than
insolvency.
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Against this backdrop, the Group completed corporate
resumption for Far East Holdings International Limited (stock
code: 36) and First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1076), and achieved a significant milestone for Warderly
International Holdings Limited (“Warderly”) (stock code: 607) in
obtaining a decision from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) to exercise its discretion to receive
and consider a reverse takeover application for the resumption of
trading of Warderly's shares. During the Financial Year, the Group
generated revenue from 23 M&A and advisory transactions and
took on underwritings and placements for a modest gross sum of
approximately HK$95.15 million. The Group continued to work
on two initial public offerings (“IPOs"”) which produced milestone
income, whilst work in distressed asset recovery progressed with
some remarkable achievements, yet no revenue could be booked
in 2012 as fees are paid upon successful collection.

Investments in securities made by the Group however
experienced mixed fortunes. The Group held a fair amount of
shares and convertible bonds in Green International Holdings
Limited (“Green International”) (stock code: 2700) since 2011 as
a result of the latter’s successful restructuring. In June 2012, by
virtue of a pre-existing placing and underwriting agreement for
approximately HK$3.27 million, the Group took up more shares
in this counter. Unfortunately, in July 2012, Green International’s
share price experienced a free fall on the day that the company
announced that its controlling shareholder had entered into a
loan facility agreement and pledged its controlling stake in Green
International to a third party. The Group was nevertheless able to
reduce its overall exposure and sold the majority of its holding in
convertible bonds of Green International, realising a proceed of
HK$10 million. This notwithstanding, the Group was still holding
a substantial investment in shares and some convertible bonds in
Green International, which, in the event, caused a fair value loss

in the Financial Year for approximately HK$2.53 million.
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As regards the Group's investment in Tack Fiori International
Group Limited (“Tack Fiori”) (stock code: 928), although the
Group had substantially reduced its previous holdings, the Group
was tempted by its rights issue and applied for the rights, and
made additional investments towards the end of 2012. The share
price however did not perform, and, as a result, the Group also
suffered a fair value loss in the Financial Year for approximately
HK$2.82 million.

During the Financial Year, the Group made investments in other
counters for a total of approximately HK$8.35 million. Allowing
for intervening trading activities and besides investments in
Green International and Tack Fiori, the Group held investments
in securities for approximately HK$11.29 million at the end of the
Financial Year, which produced a fair value gain in the Financial
Year for approximately HK$3.64 million. In addition, the Group
sub-participated in a short term, securities backed financial asset
in the second half of 2012 for HK$5 million, yielding a 20% per
annum.

In March 2012, the Company announced its plan for the
proposed transfer of its listing (the “Proposed Transfer”) from
the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") to the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Formal application for the Proposed Transfer
(the “Transfer Application”) pursuant to Chapter 9A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Main Board Listing Rules”) was submitted to the Stock Exchange
in April 2012. Despite the assistance of the then auditor, the
Group spent a lot of efforts demonstrating to the regulators
that the Group had met the minimum profit requirement under
Rule 8.05(1)(@) of the Main Board Listing Rules in respect of
the three financial years ended 31 December 2011 (the “Track
Record Period”). Attending to various probes throughout the
application process was no easy task, and had consumed a fair
amount of management energy and resources. In October 2012,
as the Transfer Application was to expire pending renewal, and as
the Stock Exchange remained unconvinced of the sustainability
of the Group given the fluctuating financial performance of
the Company during the Track Record Period and the various
one-off transactions, the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the "Directors”) of the Company decided that, despite its
conviction that one-off transactions and thus fluctuating financial
performance are features of the Group’s businesses, the Transfer
Application should not be extended, such that the Group could
refocus itself to developing its core businesses for the long term
benefit of its shareholders as a whole.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group

Against a fairly adverse operating environment during 2012, and
despite a reasonable level of activities as described in the foregoing
“Business Review” section, the Group’s revenue suffered a
wholesale shrinkage. The Group’s overall revenue for the Financial
Year was approximately HK$20.16 million, approximately 58.23%
down from the 2011 level of approximately HK$48.27 million
(as restated). Compared to 20711, whilst corporate advisory
income only took an approximately 8.60% shave, placing and
underwriting service income was seriously affected by some
89.20%, and securities dealing commission and investment
income (both realised and unrealised) had a significant drop of
approximately 78.91%.

Helped by the yield from an investment in a financial asset,
the Group’s investment portfolio achieved a realised gain of
approximately HK$4.19 million, but with an aggregate unrealised
loss of approximately HK$1.70 million, the Group was only able
to book a net securities dealing commission and investment
income of approximately HK$2.49 million for the Financial Year
(2011: approximately HK$11.78 million). Securities held at fair
value as at 31 December 2012 stood at approximately HK$26.88
million (2011: approximately HK$28.08 million).

Operating expenses for the Financial Year, which have been
restated to include placing and underwriting expenses, were
contained at approximately HK$22.71 million, a slight decrease
of approximately 4.14% from the 2011 level of approximately
HK$23.69 million. Overall staff costs marginally went down, as
general salary increments and higher equity-settled share option
expense were more than offset by lower bonuses. Rental costs
for both Hong Kong and Shanghai offices went higher upon
tenancy renewals, and auditor’s remuneration went up too, partly
attributable to the costs incurred for the Transfer Application.
With much reduced activities, placing and underwriting expenses
at approximately HK$1.60 million (2011: approximately HK$3.32
million) were lower than that of 2011.

Accordingly, the Group suffered a loss of approximately HK$1.62
million, against the 2011 profit of approximately HK$20.73
million. Loss per share for the Financial Year was approximately
HKO0.12 cents (2011: earnings per share of approximately HK1.73
cents).
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Liquidity and financial resources

In March 2012, the Company successfully completed the
placing of 240,000,000 new shares (the “Placing”) and raised
approximately HK$24 million (after expenses). Details of the
Placing are described in note 23 to the financial statements. The
Placing has strengthened the Group’s working capital, affording
it better flexibility in undertaking underwriting, placement and
investment activities.

The Group adopted a prudent financial management strategy
and maintained a healthy liquidity position as at 31 December
2012. The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$85.09 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: approximately
HK$66.45 million). As at 31 December 2012, the Group had
net current assets of approximately HK$115.64 million (2011:
approximately HK$90.17 million). Current ratio as at 31
December 2012 was approximately 24.68 (2011: approximately
12.46).

The Group's operations and investments were financed
principally by revenues generated from business operations and
available bank balances. The Group had no borrowing and the
gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings over

shareholders’ funds, was nil as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

The net asset value of the Group as at 31 December 2012
stood at approximately HK$117.55 million (2011: approximately
HK$92.47 million), which was approximately 27.12% higher than
that of 2011. The net assets value per share as at 31 December
2012 was approximately HK8.16 cents (2011: approximately
HK7.71 cents).

During the Financial Year, the Group had minimal exposure to
foreign currency risks, as most of the business transactions,
assets and liabilities were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Group will continue to monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider using hedging instruments if available in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Capital structure

Save for the Placing as disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements, there has been no change in the capital structure
of the Company during the Financial Year. The capital of the
Company comprises only ordinary shares. Total equity attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$117.55 million as at 31 December 2012
(2011: approximately HK$92.47 million). This increase was mainly
attributable to the funds raised from the Placing in the Financial
Year.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (2011: approximately HK$3.27 million).

Charge on the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any charge on
its assets (2011: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policies

The Group places strong emphasis on attracting, engaging,
training and retaining professional talents, and regards human
resource as a cornerstone in the Group's ability to secure and
deliver its advisory services and manage its assets.

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) evaluates the performance and determines the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and members of
senior management. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in section (F) of the Corporate Governance
Report.

The Group’s policy concerning remuneration of Directors is to
consider and determine remuneration (including bonuses) and
terms of service by reference to the relevant Director’s qualifications,
experience, level of responsibilities, capabilities, workload and
performance, having regard to market conditions and performance
of the individual business units and the Group as a whole. The
Group adopts a similar policy in respect of all employees.
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed 22 employees
(2011:
21 employees and one contractor) who were engaged in the

(including executive Directors) and one contractor

following activities:

Management 3
Business development and corporate advisory services 16
Administrative support including accounting and compliance 4

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years from the
date of listing of the Company (the “Listing”) on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, which will continue until terminated by giving
not less than three months’ written notice or payment in lieu
thereof to the other party. Also, each of the executive Directors
has a service agreement with Asian Capital (Corporate Finance)
Limited (”Asian Capital”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which may be terminated by either party by written
notice of not less than three months or payment in lieu of notice.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years subject to termination
in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant letters of
appointment.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meetings pursuant to the
articles of association of the Company and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Each of the employees has entered into an employment letter
with Asian Capital which, depending on his/her seniority, can be
terminated by up to two months’ written notice or payment in
lieu thereof to the other party.
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The Group has adopted and maintained incentive bonus schemes

seeking to align the financial well-being of the Group with that
of the employees, and to retain professional staff of high calibre.
Staff are offered basic salaries commensurate with market levels.
On top of basic salaries, bonuses are paid to professional staff
by reference to performance of the individual business units and
the Group as a whole as well as that of the individual. Generally
a bonus of one month’s basic salary is paid to supporting staff.

For 2012, having regard to the performance of the Group,
assessment of individual employees’ performance and despite
the gloomy market for financial services, the Group awarded
discretionary bonuses to professional staff (excluding Directors)
for retention purposes equivalent to approximately 9% of their
basic salaries (2011: approximately 30%).

In addition to other staff benefits including contributions to
mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong and social
insurance in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") for PRC
based staff, medical insurance, education subsidy and training
are offered to employees. All Directors and employees who were
with the Group at the time of the Listing were granted pre-IPO
share options. This is described in detail in the section headed
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” contained on pages 35 to 37
of this annual report. Due to factors which affected valuation,
this scheme has proven to be costly, with fair value amortization
suffered by the Group in 2012 calculated to be approximately
HK$2.28 million, representing about 16.98% of the Group's
overall staff costs for the Financial Year (2011: approximately
12.33%). Pursuant to the relevant tax rules, these costs are not
tax deductible. This percentage is likely to stay high until mid
2015 when the fair value amortization of the pre-IPO share
options runs out.

On 7 June 2010, the Company also adopted a share option
scheme, details of which are set out in note 24(b) to the financial
statements. No option has however been granted, exercised or
lapsed under this share option scheme.
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Overall, total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments and
fair value charge for the Group’s pre-IPO share options) of
approximately HK$12.95 million for the Financial Year (2011:
approximately HK$13.32 million) were lower than those of 2011
by approximately 2.78%.

The Group has engaged professional development and training
programs that enable its executives to meet the Guidelines on
Continuous Professional Training published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong pursuant to Section 399 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong). All licensed individuals employed by the Group must
undertake a minimum of five continuous professional training
hours per calendar year for each regulated activity that they are
licenced for. In 2012, the Group’s professional staff on average
undertook no less than 16 training hours.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2011: Nil).

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets

The Group had no plans for material investments or acquisitions
of capital assets as at 31 December 2012, but will actively pursue
opportunities for investments to enhance its profitability in the
ordinary course of business.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies during the Financial Year.
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Comparison between future plans and prospects and
actual business progress

An analysis comparing the future plans and prospects as stated in
the Company’s prospectus dated 11 June 2010 (the “Prospectus”)
with the Group’s actual business progress for the period from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2012 (the “Relevant Period”) is set

out below:

Future plans and prospects
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Actual business progress
during the Relevant Period

HRNMERERER

1.

Enhancement of
technical competence

R MIEE

Expansion of alliance
network

VPN eEE R

Recruit additional professional
with relevant experience/
qualifications in corporate
advisory and/or supporting staff
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BOBEHEEARR K
SHEAT

Continue to explore existing
and new client network
and alliances and develop
a stronger relationship with
Phillip Capital (HK) Limited
and Phillip Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited (collectively, the
“Phillip Securities Group”) in
Hong Kong and the PRC
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During the period, four staff (including one who
rejoined) at executive level were added to the staff
complement, partly in replenishment of one senior
management staff who retired and another executive
staff who resigned. One supporting staff also resigned
in December, vacancy filled by promotion from within
and replacement engaged and reported to duty in
January 2013.

In-house and other professional development courses
have been organised and attended by executive
staff for on-going enhancement of their technical
competence and skills.
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Relationship with the Phillip Securities Group and
other securities firms continued to be cordial with
frequent business cross referrals. The Group jointly
organised with Mayer Brown JSM to conduct a case
study seminar to the Corporate Finance Interest Group
and members of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and participated in annual dinners
of professional bodies for networking purposes.
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Future plans and prospects
RERFHEIRAIR

Actual business progress
during the Relevant Period
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3.

018

Participate in seminars and
related activities promoting
the Group’s corporate advisory
services

Improvement of
public awareness
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Taking a more active
role in fund raising and
investment activities

Involve in underwriting,
placing and/or investment
activities
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The Group made donations and sponsored scholarships
as well as a golf tournament, and its Directors
participated in receptions, annual dinners and other
events organised by professional and government
bodies as well as business associates. Its Directors and
executives participated in no less than 148 seminars
during the period to enhance corporate exposures
whilst gaining continuous professional development.
The executive chairman of the Company was involved
in @ number of activities including serving as a judge
in two of Junior Achievement Hong Kong’s events. He
continued to serve on CPA Australia’s Greater China
Division Council and frequently acting as its spokesman
on economic and topical issues. He was invited to join
prize presentation ceremonies, continuing professional
development functions and annual congress as
prize presenter, guest speaker and panel chairman
respectively. He also spoke at two seminars to the
postgraduate and undergraduate students of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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The Group’s strategy in underwriting, placing and/
or investment embraces short to medium term value
propositions, seeking as much as possible synergy
effects by enhancing client relationships. During the
period, the Group undertook and completed gross
underwriting commitments and placements for
approximately HK$95.15 million, and applied funds
towards new investments for an aggregate sum of
approximately HK$18.67 million.
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Use of proceeds

The net proceeds from the placing of the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) in the Listing were approximately HK$49.34
million. The future plans and prospects as stated in the Prospectus
were formulated based on the best estimation of the future
market conditions at the time of preparing the Prospectus. The
Directors are mindful of the financial performance of the Group
in engaging actual costs and capital expenditure. The proceeds
were conservatively applied having regard to ongoing market
conditions. During the Relevant Period, the net proceeds from the
placing of the Shares in the Listing were applied as follows:
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(T DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Planned use
of proceeds as
stated in the

Prospectus Actual use
during the of proceeds
Relevant Period during the
HBIERH  Relevant Period
it B 1S FRE FRSFIE
REBEHBH REBHBEN
AR BERAZ
(HK$°000) (HK$°000)
(F3#1T) (F#71)
Enhancement of technical competence A AiTaE D (Ka1) 500 645
(Note 1)
Expansion of alliance network (Note 2) BEARE R (Hat2) 200 49
Improvement of public awareness REARRAE 100 117
Taking a more active role in fund raising AR EEER - -
and investment activities (Note 3) REEE (H7:73)
Total st 800 811
Notes: Mt -

1. There was a net increase in headcount during the year.

2. Amounts spent on expansion of alliance network were lower than
expected as clients and business associates shared most of the costs.

3. The Group has undertaken and completed gross underwriting
commitments and placements for approximately HK$95.15 million.
As at 31 December 2012, the Group's investments at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$26.88 million.
The Group’s capital continues to serve as available funds to support
underwriting, placing and investment activities for equities or other
financial assets when opportunities arise. Surplus cash is placed on
short or medium term deposits with Hong Kong licensed banks.
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OUTLOOK

Following the last minute fiscal cliff agreement on the new year
eve, it is likely that there will be short term stability in the US
economy. However, as the Federal debt ceiling and sequestration
remain unresolved, the US debt level will remain a material
concern for investors.

Meanwhile, austerity and structural reforms may drive Europe
into further recession before an eventual recovery, with the
German Bundesbank recently slashed its 2013 growth forecast,
signaling a slowdown of the engine of Europe.

China has widely been tipped to maintain around 8% gross
domestic product growth, with the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences, the country’s top think tank, predicted that Beijing
would boost budgetary help to the economy by borrowing and
spending more, and cutting taxes that hinder economic efficiency.
Yet authorities are expected to maintain controls over the real
estate sector, whilst allowing reform of state firms.

China has also lowered the bar for companies to list in Hong Kong.
Renminbi (“RMB"”) remains on a path for internationalisation,
and the National 12th Five-Year Plan specifically states China’s
support for Hong Kong's development as an offshore RMB
business centre and an international asset management centre.
Regulatory tightening on sponsors both in China and Hong Kong
will hopefully develop a level playing field to enhance the long
term attraction and maturity of the capital markets.
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The Group has two IPO mandates on hand for proposed listing
in 2013 and is actively bidding for more, exploiting its support
from Phillip Securities Group and other alliances to assist clients
for fund raising. Along with five existing corporate resumption
(one of which resumed for trading on 4 March 2013), other
corporate advisory and asset recovery mandates together with
investments, the Directors believe that the Group’s business will
sustain well despite unstable macroeconomic developments. With
the Group’s strong liquidity position, the Directors will take on
attractive propositions when investment opportunities arise. The
Directors will also look for opportunities to work with strategic
partners to enhance the long term growth and prosperity of the
businesses of the Group.

The Group's investments at fair value through profit or loss as
at 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately HK$26.88
million. These however are subject to market risks associated
with investments and may impact the Group’s profitability from
time to time.

By order of the Board
YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 March 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick, aged 57, is a founder of the
Group, which was first established in 1998. Mr. Yeung became
an executive director of Asian Capital Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) in January 2010 in preparation for its listing. He
is the executive chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, the chairman of the nomination committee and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board. Mr.
Yeung is a director of each of the subsidiaries of the Company,
and is also a responsible officer of Asian Capital (Corporate
Finance) Limited (“Asian Capital”) pursuant to the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"). He possesses extensive general
and financial management experience covering many different
industry sectors in diversified conglomerates in Hong Kong
and Asia. Since 1985, he has focused on the areas of banking,
merchant banking, securities and listed corporations.

Mr. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and later obtained a
master's degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a
fellow member of each of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom (the “UK"), the CPA Australia as well
as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA").

Mr. Yeung holds an insolvency specialist qualification from CPA
Australia and was elected President of CPA Australia’s Greater
China Division for 2005/06 and remains on its Council. Mr. Yeung
is also a representative councilor of CPA Australia. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute, The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and the Chartered Global Management Accountants.
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Mr. Yeung is a member of the advisory boards of several
universities and college in Hong Kong. He is an Adjunct Professor
in the School of Accounting and Finance at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, and has since 2007, served as Chairman
of the Advisory Committee on Accounting & Finance of the
university. From 2004 to 2010, Mr. Yeung was the treasurer of
the Council of Lingnan University of Hong Kong, which, in 2008,
conferred on him an honorary fellow. Since December 2004, Mr.
Yeung has been a member of the university’s investment sub-
committee, and since 2011, an Honorary Court Member.

Mr. CHAN Hok Leung, aged 50, joined the Group in November
2009 and has become an executive director of the Company since
June 2010. He is also the compliance officer of the Company. Mr.
Chan is a director of each of the subsidiaries of the Company and
a responsible officer of Asian Capital pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Chan is a chartered accountant (member of the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants), a fellow member of the
HKICPA and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He holds a bachelor of commerce and administration degree from
the Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand; a master of
business administration degree from the University of Warwick,
the UK; and a master of science degree in hotel and tourism
management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Chan has a strong regulatory background with in-depth
knowledge of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers, having
spent over 13 years in the Corporate Finance Division of the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") with his last position
held as a director before leaving the SFC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XIN Luo Lin, aged 63, joined the Group in 2003 in a non-
executive role and has become the honorary chairman and
non-executive director of the Company since June 2010. He
is a member of the remuneration committee and nomination
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committee of the Board. He is also the chairman and the non-
executive director of Asian Capital. Mr. Xin is a postgraduate
from the Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). He was a research associate at the Waseda University
in Japan, an honorary research associate at the University of
British Columbia, Canada and a visiting fellow at the University of
Adelaide, Australia. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in
New South Wales of Australia in 1991. Mr. Xin is a co-author of
a book titled “China’s iron and steel industry policy: implications
for Australia”.

Mr. Xin was appointed as an adviser to the chairman of
Guangdong Capital Holdings Limited from 1998 to 2000, and he
was a non-executive director of Sino-Tech International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 724, listed on the Main Board) from August
2010 to June 2012. Mr. Xin is currently an independent non-
executive director of Enerchina Holdings Limited (stock code: 622,
listed on the Main Board), Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1168, listed on the Main Board), Central China Real
Estate Limited (stock code: 832, listed on the Main Board) and
China Environmental Technology Holdings Limited (stock code:
646, listed on the Main Board); a director of Asia Growth Capital
Limited (formerly known as Mori Denki Mfg. Co., Ltd.), a public
company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange; and a director
and vice chairman of Oriental Technologies Investment Limited, a
public company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Kai Nang, aged 67, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in June
2010. He is the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Board. He received a diploma in management studies from
The University of Hong Kong and subsequently a bachelor of laws
degree from the University of London. Mr. Chan is an associate
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
in the UK, a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the UK and a member of the HKICPA.
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Mr. Chan was the Deputy Chief Executive of the Land
Development Corporation (replaced by Urban Renewal Authority
in 2001). He was an executive director of Galaxy Entertainment
Group Limited (stock code: 27, formerly known as K. Wah
Construction Materials Limited), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board and was also the managing director of its
construction materials division until he retired on 1 May 2008. He
is an independent non-executive director of Soundwill Holdings
Limited (stock code: 878, listed on the Main Board) and Prosperity
International Holdings (H.K.) Limited (stock code: 803, listed on
the Main Board).

Mr. TSUI Pui Yan, aged 60, joined the Group as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in December 2010. He is
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the audit committee and nomination committee of the Board. He
holds a bachelor degree in social sciences from the University of
Hong Kong and is a member of the HKICPA and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of British Columbia.

Mr. Tsui is a director of Shenzhen State-Owned Duty Free
Commodity (Group) Co., Ltd. He is the chairman of Korn/Ferry
International (H.K.) Ltd. (“Korn/Ferry”) and had acted as head
of Asia Pacific financial services for Korn/Ferry. With more than
two decades of executive search experience, Mr. Tsui heads the
academic, education and not-for-profit specialist teams.

Mr. Y1 Xiqun, aged 65, joined the Group as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in June 2010. He is a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board. He graduated from Beijing Chemical
Institute and later obtained a postgraduate degree in economics
and management engineering from Tsinghua University. From
1984 to 1986, Mr. Yi attended training at The Party School of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China.
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In August 2009, Mr. Yi retired as the chairman and executive
director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code:
392, listed on the Main Board), and Beijing Enterprises Group
Company Limited. Mr. Yi currently serves as an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (stock
code: 3968) and SOHO China Limited (stock code: 410), both
listed on the Main Board. Mr. Yi also serves as vice chairman
of China Association of Private Equity, vice chairman of Beijing
Private Equity Association and chairman of Capital Enterprises
Association. He is an independent non-executive director of
Zheshangjinhui Trust Co., Ltd, vice president of China Association
for the Promotion of Industrial Development and member of
Zhong Guancun Advisory Committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gerard Joseph MCMAHON, aged 68, joined the Group in
1999 as a founder and is now the senior adviser to Asian Capital.
He has been a responsible officer of Asian Capital pursuant
to the SFO since 2003. He is qualified as a barrister in Hong
Kong and in New South Wales, Australia. Mr. McMahon has
specialised in Hong Kong company law, securities and banking
law and takeovers and mergers regulations. He was an executive
director and a member of the SFC from 1989 to 1996 and the
representative of the SFC on the Hong Kong Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform.

Mr. McMahon was a director of a number of publicly listed
companies in Hong Kong and overseas, including Sun Hung Kai
& Co., Limited (stock code: 86) and The HKCB Bank Holding
Company Limited (stock code: 655, now known as Hongkong
Chinese Limited), both listed on the Main Board. Currently, Mr.
McMahon is an independent non-executive director of Guangnan
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1203, listed on the Main Board),
a director and the chairman of Oriental Technologies Investment
Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange;
and a non-executive director of Indonesian Investment Fund
Limited, a company listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. He was a
director of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Mr. LAM Bing Wah, aged 28, joined the Group in 2008. He
is the financial controller of the Company and a manager of
Asian Capital. Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a
member of the HKICPA. Before joining Asian Capital, he worked
in the Assurance Department of one of the big four international
accounting firms. Mr. Lam has undertaken assignments including
advising on corporate finance activities, mergers and acquisitions,
equity fund raising activities, corporate resumption, IPO projects
and compliance adviser for Hong Kong listed companies.

Ms. LI Pui Yee, aged 33, joined the Group in 2008. She is the
company secretary of the Company and a senior manager of
Asian Capital. Ms. Li holds a bachelor of commerce degree in
accounting from Macquarie University in Sydney, Australia and
is @ member of each of CPA Australia and the HKICPA. Before
joining Asian Capital, she worked in the professional field of
insolvency and restructuring. She has undertaken assignments
including advising on corporate finance activities, corporate
resumption, IPO project, litigation support and distressed asset
recovery.

Mr. SUN Yili, aged 35, joined the Group in 2005, left briefly in
2008 and rejoined the Group in the beginning of 2009. He is a
senior manager of Asian Capital. Mr. Sun obtained his degree in
economics from the Peking University, then graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a master of arts degree in China
development studies and a master of business administration
degree. Mr. Sun has undertaken assignments including advising
on corporate finance activities, mergers and acquisitions,

corporate resumption, IPO projects, litigation support and

distressed asset recovery and equity fund raising activities.
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Ms. YU Ningyi, aged 34, joined the Group in 2007. She is  AIZEZR/NE @ 3455 R-EZEFMALREE -
a senior manager of Asian Capital and the chief representative K AFTEMEREERANEE EESREEFHER
of the Group's Shanghai office which she supervises. Ms. Yu ?E BEEELENHER - s/ NEERE EBFA
graduated from Tongji University in Shanghai, PRC with a EAERSEEREZELEBM REGEBAE
bachelor degree in international trade, and holds a master of IPéﬁ ERETE0 - REREEELEWE 3
business administration degree from the University of Hong 1¥mEEFEFREER - HEIE EEEE
Kong. She has undertaken assignments including general offer, ~ FTARIAMRER « R AEIANFATIERT
advising on corporate finance activities, mergers and acquisitions, R ZERIUE T 1k -

compliance adviser for Hong Kong listed companies, corporate

resumption, litigation support and distressed asset recovery.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS EEERNEE

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing  fRIEES FTAIERE S E R EISE17.50A01) &
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock  ARAFREZERMEHEFIIWT ¢

Exchange, changes in information of directors of the Company

are set out below:

Name of director Details of changes

EEpE SEFE

Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick Total emoluments decreased in 2012 by approximately HK$0.40 million to
BEREE approximately HK$1.45 million compared to 2011, all of which are covered

by service contracts.

TE - FEMER T ——F R4 49400,000/8 T2 491,450,000/ 7T © B
SRR RIEA LTI -

Mr. CHAN Hok Leung Total emoluments decreased in 2012 by approximately HK$0.46 million to

FRER A approximately HK$1.83 million compared to 2011, of which approximately
HK$1.45 million (2011: approximately HK$2.15 million) is covered by service
contracts.

Director’'s annual salary has been increased from HK$1,140,000 to
HK$1,200,000 with effect from January 2013.

TR FENER T ——F R4 49460,000/8 T £ 491,830,000/ 7T H
FR#91,450,000/8 7T (ZZ——4 : £92,150,0005670) HARIEA LTRSS -

B EFH T H1,140,0008 T H151,200,0008 70 B -E—=F— A4
e
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Name of director

BEEHR

'ORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENeREEEFHARRE

Details of changes

BEFE

Mr. XIN Luo Lin
FEMEE

Mr. CHAN Kai Nang
PRERBESEE

Mr. TSUI Pui Yan
®wIMBIE

Mr. YI Xiqun
KHEEFTHE

Total emoluments increased in 2012 by approximately HK$0.06 million to
approximately HK$0.49 million compared to 2011, of which approximately
HK$0.41 million (2011: approximately HK$0.33 million) is covered by letter
of appointment.

Director’s annual fee has been increased from HK$120,000 to HK$132,000
with effect from January 2013.

Mr. Xin was re-designated from non-executive to independent non-executive
director of China Environmental Technology Holdings Limited (stock code:
646, listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) on 7 August 2012.

TE - FHEPER T ——FHEI14960,00078 T E £7490,0008 T ¢+ E A
#3410,0007 7T (ZZ——4 : £9330,00087T) AEEEFTASI T ©

EEFEEHMELTH120,00008 T INZE132,00087T B E—=F— A4
e

R-ZF——F\AtH  FEEEFBERFEREZERBERQA] (RO
646 - ﬁ/\EupforEWiJ:m) RIFATERRRAEIFNITES

Director’s annual fee has been increased from HK$120,000 to HK$132,000
with effect from January 2013.

BEEFEMLTH120,000/8 T IMNE132,00087T B E—=F—F4%
R o

Director’s annual fee has been increased from HK$120,000 to HK$132,000
with effect from January 2013.

EEFEHEES D H120,0008TEIMNE132,00087L B - T—=F—F4
B o

Director’s annual fee has been increased from HK$120,000 to HK$132,000
with effect from January 2013.

EEFEHEEL D H120,0008 T MNE132,00087L B-_E—=F— A4
B e
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the

Company is pleased to present its annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 (the “Financial Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of corporate
advisory services and related activities as well as investment
activities.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Financial Year and the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 63 to 142.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the Financial Year (2011: Nil).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the plant and equipment of the Group during the
Financial Year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the Financial Year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account
and retained earnings amounted to approximately HK$71.42
million (2011:
Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2012 are set

approximately HK$40.41 million). Details of the

out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Financial Year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick (Executive Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung

Non-executive Director

Mr. XIN Luo Lin (Honorary Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kai Nang
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan
Mr. YI Xiqun

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
currently in service are set out on pages 22 to 29 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were

DIRECTORS REPORT
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required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to

Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the

Company

([BIR ETRE]) A EBERETESFZIHN
F5.4625. 67 MME RN A MEEFT

REQXFROEEERGNER

Number of
underlying Approximate
shares percentage of
Number of pursuant to shareholding
ordinary share option Aggregate in the Company
Name of Director Capacity shares held ARESRH interests {5 R REN
E=gE 5% FESEREE HERGEE RSB BHAF A
Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Interest of controlled 769,660,000 - 769,660,000 53.45%
Patrick (“Mr. Yeung") corporation (Note 1)
IBEELE ([HEE]) ZESEERER (BfzF1)
Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 (Note 2) 10,000,000 0.69%
BEEHEEA (Biz#2)
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung Beneficial owner 3,500,000 10,000,000 (Note 2) 13,500,000 0.94%
PREREE EnlEAA (Biz#2)
Mr. XIN Luo Lin Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 (Note 2) 10,000,000 0.69%
ERMEE EnlEAA (Biz#2)
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang Beneficial owner - 6,000,000 (Note 2) 6,000,000 0.42%
PRERRESE & EEHEEA (Hzt2)
Mr. Y1 Xigqun Beneficial owner - 6,000,000 (Note 2) 6,000,000 0.42%
KGR E EnlEAA (Hzt2)
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan Beneficial owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.07%

HmB L
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Notes:

1. These shares represent 699,260,000 shares owned by Master Link
Assets Limited (“Master Link”) and 70,400,000 shares owned by
Allied Target Holdings Limited (“Allied Target”).

Master Link is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yeung is deemed to be interested in the
699,260,000 shares held by Master Link.

Allied Target is owned as to 70% by Mr. Yeung. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Yeung is deemed to be interested in the 70,400,000 shares held
by Allied Target.

2. These shares represent the underlying interest in shares pursuant to
the options granted to the Directors by the Company under the pre-
IPO share option scheme. Further details are set out in the paragraph
headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” under the section headed
“Share Option Schemes”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which

EEERE

Wizt -

1. ZERHFE 69926000088 5% (7 HiMaster Link
Assets Limited ([Master Link /) # & ) 70,400,000
RIR 1 B IEE B G IR LA ([BIZEE ) A -

Master Linkfi#5 5t £ 2 BB mEH o IRIFFEHK
HEEG - 1555 £ E B R Master LinkBT# & £9
699,260,000/ (7 H B 1z ©

BIZEB GG L HEET0%E s o RIFZHR
HE KR - 1555 L WRIE BRI IZE B 16 8
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were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of

share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of any member of the Group:

sk NMEM BB BRAM5% A EHETEE
MM ARNNAABR TEAREEMKE
RAMBERAE LRE

Long positions in shares of the Company REARRBHNER
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held {EAA T RAEMN
RER AR g FrEROHE BMABED T
Master Link (Note 1) (#7&Z1) Beneficial owner 699,260,000 48.56%
EREBA
Mr. LIM Hua Min (“Mr. Lim") (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 252,955,791 17.57%
MESR L (TMEL ) (Bat2) KRR EE RS
Phillip Capital (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 252,955,791 17.57%
("Phillip Capital (HK)") (Note 2)
BYER (FE) ARAA EnBERA
(MELER (F#)]) (Hiz2)
Ms. LAM Pik Wah Beneficial owner 90,000,000 6.25%

MEELL

Notes:

BExDBBEA

Hiat -

1. Master Link is an investment holding company, the entire issued 1. Master Link/3—[#EFK A - A2 EE 7T

share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.

Yeung.

REBGELEL ERE RS -

2. Phillip Capital (HK) is an investment holding company which is 2. #B7 &R (FF) B—RRELR LG BkEL

owned as to 85% by Mr. Lim. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lim is
deemed to be interested in the 252,955,791 shares owned by Phillip

Capital (HK).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Directors

were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or who is directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 7 June 2010. The principal terms of
the two schemes are summarised in the sections headed “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme” and “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix
V to the Company’s prospectus dated 11 June 2010.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to the
participants as incentive or reward for their contributions to the
Group.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 120,000,000 shares
at an exercise price of HK$0.20 were granted by the Company,
each at a consideration of HK$1.00 under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. All the available options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were granted on 10 June 2010 and no further
options could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
thereafter.

CTORS' REPORT
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As at 31 December 2012, details of the options granted under R-Z——F+_A=+—0  REHIXAHE

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were as follows: ERRREE DR ORIEFIBOT
Number of options
AREHE
Approximate
Outstanding Outstanding percentage of
as at asat issued share
31 December 31 December capital of
Exercise period 201 Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2012 the Company
(ddimmiyy) RZB--F during during during R=Z-=f AT
Name of grantee yid TZB=t-H the year the year theyear T=A=+-H BEIREH
RRALE (8/8/%) HATE CERERTE ERFREE EREREN HWATE  BOEDHL
Directors
£
Mr. YEUNG 10/06/12 - 09/06/20 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 0.69%
oy
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung 10/06/12 - 09/06/20 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 0.69%
REREE
Mr. XIN Luo Lin 10/06/12 - 09/06/20 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 0.69%
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang 10/06/12 - 09/06/20 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 0.42%
BRRRE £ A
Mr. Y1 Xiqun 10/06/12 - 09/06/20 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 0.42%
RErE
Employees of the Group 10/06/12 - 09/06/20 50,000,000 - - (5,850,000) 44,150,000 3.07%
AEEES
Total 92,000,000 - - (5,850,000) 86,150,000 5.98%
@t
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The options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall

vest in the relevant option holder in tranches in the following
manner:

(@) 10% of the option were vested on 10 June 2012;

(b) 20% of the option shall vest on 10 June 2013;

(©) 30% of the option shall vest on 10 June 2014; and

(d) 40% of the option shall vest on 10 June 2015.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 24(a) to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

During the Financial Year, no option was granted, exercised
or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 24(b) to the financial
statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes”, at no time during the Financial Year was the Company,
its subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS REPORT
EEEHRE

RIFE XA F R E AR R 813 H A R A
BATHADHRE TERBRERAA

(@) 10% M REEE N ——F®At+HE
B

(b) 20 RBBREBR _ZT—=F A 1+HRE
B

(C) 30%mu/uﬁy\ﬁéﬂ _P—I]E/;\}E]—'—HE%
B Xk

(d) 40%MREEKR -FT—HFNA

Eo

+HE

BRAFREEN RS NE - FHBFERY
BRI aE24() ©

R

KA BEFE - HERDRERZRIET SR
H TR E R - BB W BHN B
HERMEE24(0)

BEROIEEINEZH

BRI EX TR S —fpTREEI AR
A EMBARSREKKERAR NG BRRE
P22 ) B A 1m0 BT B8 % 1A 7S B IR 5 A ] B D 61
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
Financial Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Financial Year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has through the nomination committee of the
Board reviewed the independence of each of the independent
non-executive Directors, and has received annual confirmations
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Directors are not aware of any related party transactions
as set out in note 28 to the financial statements constitute a
connected transaction of the Group, nor are there any connected
transactions that require to be disclosed in this annual report
under the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company and their respective associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group nor any conflict of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float in the issued share capital of
the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Through community involvements by the Group and its executives,
the Group is committed to being a good corporate citizen, and
Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited (“Asian Capital”) has,
since 2008, been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. The Group, despite its
relatively small complement, took on seven interns during the
Financial Year (2011: four interns), and made charitable donations
for approximately HK$0.10 million (2011: approximately HK$0.02
million). In January 2012, Asian Capital sponsored the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University 75th Anniversary UBS Invitational
Golf Tournament. In October 2012, executives of Asian Capital
participated in the “Walking with Lingnanians” fundraising
walkathon 2012 organised by the Lingnan University in support
of the university’s whole-person development programmes, and
the Asian Capital team was awarded the Top Team Fundraiser
Award (First Runner-up).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In the Financial Year, the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 50.87% of the Group’s revenue with the
largest customer accounting for approximately 15.20% of the
Group’s revenue.
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During the Financial Year, the Company had certain equity interest
(less than 5%) in one of the Group’s five largest customers which
is a company listed on the Stock Exchange. As a result, some
Directors and all the shareholders of the Company had an indirect
interest in that customer by virtue of their shareholding interests
in the Company. Also, based on publicly available information,
one of the shareholders owning 6.25%* of the Company’s issued
share capital had a 5.12%* equity interest in another company
listed on the Stock Exchange which is one of the Group’s five
largest customers during the Financial Year. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests
as at 31 December 2012.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the Financial
Year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 2.4 to
the financial statements.

*  Based on disclosure of interests as of 31 December 2012.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five financial years is set out on pages 143 to 144
of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the placing of 240,000,000 new shares of the Company
which was completed on 19 March 2012, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any
of the Company’s listed securities during the Financial Year.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by VC Capital Limited (“VC Capital”), the compliance
adviser of the Company, neither VC Capital nor its directors or
employees or associates had any interests in the share capital of
the Company or any member of the Group (including options or
rights to subscribe for such securities) as at 31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 17 June 2010 entered into
between VC Capital and the Company, VC Capital received
and will receive fees for acting as the compliance adviser of
the Company until the expiry of such agreement following the
distribution of the Company’s 2012 annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practice adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 43 to 60 of this annual
report.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2012
and up to the date of approval of this report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 17 December 2012 to fill the causal vacancy arising
from the resignation of Ernst & Young, who was the auditor of
the Company for the three preceding financial years. A resolution
for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board
CHAN Hok Leung

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 4 March 2013
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(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices for the period from 1 January 2012 to
31 March 2012 and the Corporate Governance Code for the
period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), with the exception
of one deviation as set out under section (D) below. The
application of the relevant principles and the reasons for the
abovementioned deviation are contained in this report.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company regularly monitors and reviews the Group’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance.

(B) SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all the Directors who have
confirmed their compliance with the required standard
of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2012. No incident of non-compliance was noted
by the Company during this period.
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Compositions

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategy
and overseeing the development of the Group. In so doing,
the Board receives monthly reports from the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “CEO”), monitors the internal
control policies and evaluates the financial performance of
the Group with an aim to enhancing shareholders’ value. The
Board currently comprises two executive Directors including
the CEO, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. Biographical details of the Directors
are set out on pages 22 to 29 of this annual report.

Six Board meetings were held during the financial year ended
31 December 2012 (the “Financial Year”). The composition
of the Board and attendances of the Directors are set out

(OE==
Exg4AN

EXeRERFEBRMEEEAREMNE
R’ EFEEABRARRTHRA ([1TTHK
BE]) MER - BERAREERE LFHEAR
SEMBRR  EERNTBREE -EFE
BRIEMUATES (BRITERAR) - —u
FARTEEN =B TEFEAK - &
EHNBEESENAFHRE22HEEF29E -

REBE_T——F+-A=+—HILHMEF
B (AFHREE]) A XBITTRNRES
e EFENARLEFENHFEZHT

below: mE
Number of
meetings
attended/held
Name HiE 2T Note
A SRRE g3
Executive Directors:
HITEE -
Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick (Executive Chairman and CEQ) 6/6 -
SRS (AT /EFRITHAEEH)
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung 6/6 -
PRER S
Non-executive Director:
HPTESE :
Mr. XIN Luo Lin (Honorary Chairman) 6/6 -
FERERMEE (RELE)
Independent non-executive Directors:
BUHPITESE :
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang 6/6 -
PREREE ST
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan 6/6 -
MBS E
Mr. YI Xiqun 5/6 1
KEGRESLE
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Note:

1. Out of the six Board meetings held in 2012, Mr. Yi attended
five meetings in person and appointed an alternate director to
attend one meeting on his behalf.

Apart from the formal meetings listed above, there were
other matters requiring Board approval which were arranged
by means of circulation of written resolutions.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors representing half of
the Board with two of them having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has, through the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”),
reviewed the independence of, and received an annual
confirmation of independence from, each of the independent
non-executive Directors, and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Delegation to Board Committees and Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for business
development, leadership, management and control of the
Group and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing, supervising and monitoring the Group’s
affairs. It has established three committees, namely, the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the Nomination Committee and the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”). All of the committees have written
terms of reference in accordance with the Code. More details
of these committees are set out in separate sections of this
report.
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The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to
the executive Directors to facilitate the efficient day to
day management of the Group’s business. Investment
decisions are made by the executive Directors pursuant to
the procedures and limits adopted by the Group. Delegated
authorities in the form of monetary limits are set and
delegated to the executive Directors and management of the
Group for financial commitments and capital expenditures
so that they can apply their discretion and respond swiftly
when investment opportunities and business needs arise. The
observance and prudent exercising of delegated limits are
monitored by the Audit Committee through the engagement
of a professional accounting firm (the “Internal Auditor”).
Any transaction causing an exposure in excess of these limits
will require the Board's approval.

In addition, the Board delegates to the Remuneration
Committee authorities to determine remuneration for
executive Directors and members of senior management.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance yet being pragmatic
on business decisions and management efficiency. The
independent non-executive Directors are members, and
represent the majority, of all the Board committees of the
Company, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Whilst the
Board is ultimately responsible for corporate governance
matters, it delegates much of these functions to the Audit
Committee which comprises only of independent non-
executive Directors and is assisted by the Internal Auditor
performing the internal audit function.
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During the six Board meetings held in the Financial Year,

corporate governance issues were discussed in four of these
meetings and attendances of the Directors are set out below:

g et

ATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHE

RAFBFEERITZAREZEEET @ &
PR EHRECHEEERETEFL AW
BEENHEREIIMT

Number of
meetings
attended/held
Name i BT Note
i =8 Kzt
Executive Directors:
HITESE
Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick (Executive Chairman and CEQ) 4/4 -
BIESB R (HITE/EFRTEAGE)
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung 4/4 _
PRER 4
Non-executive Director:
HHTESE :
Mr. XIN Luo Lin (Honorary Chairman) 4/4 -
FERMESE (KEEE)
Independent non-executive Directors:
BUFHTESE -
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang 4/4 -
PRESBE ST &
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan 4/4 —
IRME L&
Mr. YI Xiqun 3/4 1
KGR E
Note: Htat -

1. An alternate director was appointed by Mr. Yi to attend on his
behalf in one of these four Board meetings and that was not
counted as an attendance by himself.

I KAEAECREERRERYEOREERS
B RE— KB - UEETFARLEE -
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During the Financial Year and up to the date of this
report, the Board has, among other things, reviewed the
relevant procedures and monetary limits delegated to
the executive Directors and management of the Group
in respect of investments and financial commitments;
approved the Group’s updated compliance manual and
policies on corporate governance applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management.

Continuous Professional Development

During the Financial Year, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development, variously in attending
in-house briefing,
giving talks and/or reading materials relevant to their duties
and responsibilities and/or the Group’s business to develop,
refresh and update their knowledge and skills. Based on
information and records provided by the Directors, they have
participated in trainings which covered the following topics:

or chairing conferences and seminars,

RAFBFEEREEARERY EFeC

(BB’ R ARKRERMBEARRT
AEERTEEREEENHEBIZT KUK
PREE %tt)&$ﬁlﬁ%3’\1§§i&§$m§i¥ﬁ
BRFMEERERREK AR RER
%%&%é&ﬁ@@E’UEEJ'I&?%%E@%%&J:

FRERRE

RAMBFEE  FMAEEEH2ESENRE
BXUR BRUEXIIHSINATE
NG BREIR RBEEBER
ﬂ‘“&%&&/‘}zl‘%%fxﬂﬁﬁﬂ A %

C AR E R E MBI o RIFE S
ktﬁ’ﬂéﬁﬂ)}aaﬁz RE2HE 7 B A

TERE

Corporate
governance, Financial,
rules and management
regulations and other
(including business skills

directors’ duties) and knowledge

BEER - MEEER
Name AR R A HAih2E5
A (BREESHK) HeER AR
Executive Directors:
HITEE -
Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick (Executive Chairman and CEO) N \
ISR (AT /EFRITHAREH)
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung N N

RERTE
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Corporate
governance, Financial,
rules and management
regulations and other
(including business skills
directors’ duties) and knowledge
hEER MBEER
Name AR R B Hih
HE (BEESRK) BEE R A
Non-executive Director:
HEHITEE :
Mr. XIN Luo Lin (Honorary Chairman) N N
EBEMGE (KEEE)
Independent non-executive Directors:
BUHHITESE .
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang \ N
PRIERRE ST
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan Vv Vv
IRmE &
Mr. YI Xiqun Vv Vv
KEGRESTHE

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) gives Directors regular updates on the
amendments to the GEM Listing Rules and implementation
of new applicable laws. The Company also organised an in
house seminar last year to provide an opportunity for the
Directors to keep abreast of the latest regulatory changes.

ApRARwE ([RAWE]) TG T8
EEAWAIER ETRANER] R e A D
BRONER - KRB FREFERT —ER
B E  BEFAEZESHOMOINE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick is the executive chairman
and the CEO of the Company. The Board considers that
the Company is still in its growing stage and it would be
beneficial to the Group for Mr. Yeung to assume both roles
as the executive chairman and CEO of the Company, since
the two roles tend to reinforce each other and are mutually
enhancing in respect of the Group’s continual growth and
development. When the Group has developed to a more
sizeable organisation, the Board will consider splitting
the two roles. With their strong business and governance
experience, the Directors do not expect any issues of concern
would arise due to the combined role of Mr. Yeung. The
Group also has in place an effective internal control system,
including the engagement of Internal Auditor to conduct
internal audit, to perform check and balance functions.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the existing Directors who
do not hold any executive role in the Company are for a
period of three years subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
"Articles of Association”) and the GEM Listing Rules.
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(F) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
in June 2010 which currently comprises the CEO, the non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors with written terms of reference. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, formulating, reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and members of senior management, determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and members of senior management and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the Financial Year. The composition of the Remuneration
Committee and attendances of the individual members are
set out below:

TRERHE

(F) FMZES

ARAR-_ZE-—TFAKRUFHNEES -
BRTRKBBRITRAR  FRTEER=[
BYFRTES IO E@MAIAHBES
cHHEZEENTIZREERE (AFERE)
HE RELTAEERGREEZABNERE
FHMBRERBRESSRLEE  BEEM
FIATEERSREBASNFBFTE - A
FIERTERNFIRES SR HES

REAMBFE FMZESR7TT —RE
& o HNEZ B SRR L ERIK B/ X
o -

Number of
meeting
attended/held
Members of the Remuneration Committee g BT Notes
FHEESRE BRR™ Kzt
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan (Chairman) 11 1
MR EE (F/F)
Mr. XIN Luo Lin (Ex-chairman) 11 1
EBRMTE (FIEERE)
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang 11 -
PRESBESE &
Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick 11 2
HEEEE
Mr. Y1l Xiqun I7Al 2
KPR E
Notes: Mt -

1. Mr. Tsui was appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee to succeed Mr. Xin with effect from 5 March 2012.

2. Mr. Yeung and Mr. Yi were appointed as members of the
Remuneration Committee on 5 March 2012.

1. GALEZAREXALEFHFHZESE
B A E——F = HAHEE -

2 BHEAERXKFAR-FT——F=HAnAEZT
wHWEREHER -
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In early 2012, among other things, the Remuneration
Committee duly reviewed the Group's remuneration policy,
and determined salary and remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management. At the
meetings held in early 2013, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and structure,
assessed the performance of all the executive and non-
executive Directors, determined the remuneration packages
of the executive Directors, gave direction on the revision of
remuneration packages of senior management and other
employees, and made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors after having
considered comparable companies and other relevant factors.
The Remuneration Committee also reviewed the terms of
service contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors
and recommended their renewal.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee in
June 2010 which comprises the CEO, non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee cover the reviewing of the structure, size,
diversity and composition of the Board, identifying and
nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing
the nomination of Directors and making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee met once during the Financial
Year and, among other things, reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, including the rotation of
Directors. The composition of the Nomination Committee
and attendances of the individual members are set out
below:
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Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEENE
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GEEREE

Number of meeting
attended/held
HE S BITERRHE

Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick (Chairman)
SRR E (F/E)

Mr. CHAN Kai Nang

PBRERBESE 4

Mr. TSUI Pui Yan

RIME & E

Mr. XIN Luo Lin

FERMESE

Mr. YI Xiqun

WIGEETHE

At the meeting held in early 2013, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the established policy and procedure
for the nomination and appointment of new Directors, and
assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee, having reviewed
the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board,
considered that the present arrangements were appropriate.
It noted that Mr. CHAN Kai Nang and Mr. YEUNG Kai
Cheung Patrick would retire by rotation as independent
non-executive Director and executive Director respectively at
the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to the
Articles of Association and the GEM Listing Rules and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Nomination
Committee recommended their re-appointment and this was
subsequently approved by the Board in March 2013.

11
11
11
11

11

R-IBE-—ZFFNET28% REEEQ
BATEHEZRENEZEFEETORER
BF - AN B IFRITEENB LI -
REZESERVBEFTSORE AR %
UL RARKIE - RBBRNLHEE - 128
ZEEIED  BUIFATERRREELL
LATEFEHEELLEBREZERMA LA
ERETRAINERERRBEFAEG LSRR
BRE HERESEBLMERSMEL -2
ZESEANSRENZME MEERER
RZE—=ZF=ZAEEEGHE -
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(H) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference and comprises three independent
non-executive Directors in compliance with Rules 5.28 and
5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include, among other things, (i) reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process; (i) reviewing
internal control systems as well as risk management systems
of the Group; (iii) reviewing the financial statements and the
quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Group; and (iv)
reviewing the terms of engagement and scope of audit work
of the internal auditor and external auditor and ensure their
coordination.

During the Financial Year, the Audit Committee held six
meetings. Its composition and attendances of individual
members at these Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

(HEZZERE
BREBEN -T2 TFENARL  YEE
HAEXBERE - R 2B
TEE FAAERLETRIE28ER

5262 RE - EREEENTFEREBE
(B8 ()R RERANE B K% E R
BF (M AEBATETHERRARE
BHE: (IWEHAEENTBEREARSE
B REAREE®RE - R(v)%bB R RIND
ZEE R GR RS TR - AR E
R TR R -

RAFBEE - T

REEGRBITT ARG
& HEAMENKENZEEREZESS

AAHERFIIT -

Number of meetings

Members of the Audit Committee attended/held
EREEENE HEBIOIERRE
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang (Chairman) 6/6
PRERBESTAE (/)

Mr. TSUI Pui Yan 6/6
IRIME L&

Mr. Y1 Xiqun 6/6
KGRI E
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During the Financial Year and up to the date of this report,
the Audit Committee was engaged in, among other duties,
receiving reports from the Internal Auditor, reviewing
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group and
providing advice and comments thereon to the Board. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems and made recommendations
to the Board for improvement. In discharging its duties,
the Audit Committee met with the Group’s management,
Internal Auditor and external auditor several times during
2012. Upon the recommendation by the Audit Committee,
the Board resolved to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the auditor of the Company to fill the causal vacancy
arising from the resignation of Ernst & Young in 2012. The
Audit Committee considered and approved the terms of
engagement and remuneration of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
and discussed with it the nature and scope of the audit.
The Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report and

provided its advice and comments thereon.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group places high importance on internal control which
is the foundation of the Group’s reputation and maintenance
The Board is
maintaining a sound and effective internal control system in

of clients’ confidence. responsible  for
order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
assets of the Company against improper use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the
provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring

compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

The Audit Committee is assisted by the Internal Auditor
to conduct regular internal audits pursuant to the internal
audit programme adopted by the Audit Committee. The
Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee, which
regularly meets to review the financial statements of the
Group and internal audit findings on financial and internal
control matters. This annual report has been reviewed by
the Internal Auditor, who confirms that it has not identified
any matters that need to be brought to the attention of the
Audit Committee.
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Throughout the Financial Year, through the implementation
of the internal audit programme approved by the Audit
Committee, the Board regularly reviewed and monitored the
overall effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system,
covering all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance as well as risk management functions. The
Board is of the view that the system is effective for the
Group to achieve its internal control objectives. The Board
will continue to assess the effectiveness of internal controls
taking into consideration the results of reviews performed
by the executive management, the Internal Auditor and the
Audit Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Financial Year, the remuneration in respect of
non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$0.18
million. This was mainly related to the services provided by
the Company’s former auditor, Ernst & Young to act as the
reporting accountants of the Company in connection with
its application for the proposed transfer of listing of its shares
from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
remuneration of the new auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in
respect of audit services was approximately HK$0.58 million.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The statement of the Company’s auditor about
its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 61 to
62 of this annual report.
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(L) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any two or more
shareholders of the Company (the *“Shareholders”) or
any one Shareholder which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee(s)) holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, shall have the
right, by written requisitions, to put forward proposals and
require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") to be
convened. Subject to applicable legislations and regulations,
the procedures for Shareholders to convene and put forward
proposals at an EGM are as follows:

1. The written requisitions shall be deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong situated
in Suite 1006, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road,
Central, Hong Kong (for the attention of the Company
Secretary), specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists.

2. The Company will then verify the request with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will then ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the regulatory requirements and the
Articles of Association to all the registered Shareholders.
If the request has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of the outcome
and an EGM will not be convened as requested.
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3. If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a general meeting but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to
convene the meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

Proposing a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a Shareholder (not being the person to be proposed),
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also notice in writing signed by the person
to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.

The written notice must state the full name of the person to
be proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules. Upon receipt of the notice, the Company will
assess whether or not it is necessary to adjourn the meeting
of the election to give Shareholders at least 10 business days
to consider the proposed appointment.
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(M) INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level
of transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its Shareholders.
The Board strives to encourage and maintain regular
communication with Shareholders through various means.
The Company encourages all Shareholders to attend annual
general meetings, which provide opportunities for direct
dialogue between the Board and the Shareholders, and for
Shareholders to stay informed of the Group's strategy and
goals.

At the annual general meeting held on 20 April 2012 (the
“2011 AGM"), the executive and honorary chairmen of
the Board, the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees and representatives from the former
auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, were present to
attend to questions from Shareholders. The 2011 AGM was
the only general meeting held during the Financial Year and
the attendances of the Directors are set out below:

‘ORPO RATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CREARS

(M) REERBE
ARABNERSERE - LRMARFEM

RERAEBEREEEBERORK - 85
EHRBEZRETADBRREE R EK
RBRE - NARISEPTABRR L ERRASF
RE  WhHRHEEEHERREREFENE
g WEBREETHEAEENRERERER -

RIZEBE-—ZFHNATARTIREBAFRXR
(22— FREBFAE])  EFEH
TERRKKEXRF BERZET - FHEE
GREZREESTH  URKQFRIEZE
Bl — RKEFMEBAZAE  HELRE
EHERERRZRER T ——FRRAF
EAVBFER—RIT2RRERE - M
BEEMEREEHINET ¢

Number of
general meeting
attended/held
Name BT Notes
®E RERAERE Kt
Executive Directors:
HITESE
Mr. YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick (Executive Chairman and CEQ) il 1
TSR (T FEFITHAREL)
Mr. CHAN Hok Leung 11 -
PRER 4
Non-executive Director:
HHTESE :
Mr. XIN Luo Lin (Honorary Chairman) 1N -

FRMALE (RELE)
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Number of
general meeting
attended/held
Name i BT Notes
HE RERAEIRE Kt
Independent non-executive Directors:
BUHHTESE .
Mr. CHAN Kai Nang 1/1 2
PRERAE ST
Mr. TSUI Pui Yan 11 3
B L E
Mr. Y1 Xiqun 11 -
GRS
Notes: Hiat -

1. Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
2. Chairman of the Audit Committee.

3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee since 5 March 2012.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its notices,
announcements and circulars, as well as quarterly, interim
and annual reports. The corporate website maintained by
the Company at www.asiancapital.com.hk provides an
effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders. Shareholders and investors may at any time
send their enquiries to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post at Suite 1006, Bank of America
Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong or by email at
info@asiancapital.com.hk.
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To the shareholders of Asian Capital Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asian
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 142, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

i .-.‘h’ 'r,-'l*; . i 1
v%‘\ (" # ﬁiﬁéﬁifal Holdings Limited
N S DEAERAT

BEDERBRATRR
(RESHSEME AR 7])

ABED (AT (R 1)) 2% 7I8% F63
EIRASBEAARAF (A THEEATF])
RENBA R (678 & EE ) a0 5HE
% WEAHBREEER -T——F+-A=
+—BNEANAANBRRERBEL A ILF
EHEARERER SARSEBEREAT
SHEX  URTEEHREMEREMM R
BEH -

EERAREMBRRARENEE

BERREFARARBEEA SN ASRMHE
BUBRELEEFESRTEN) WERE
mAFEMBEHRE  ULHEEMBHRRELEER
MAFHRIR - REBEERSRERGSMBRE
P b ZH) A BRI S - AR S 7% R N E
PARREF 2k 56 3R T B B A A #H AR BR

BB BT

BPMEERRERMNBAEZESEEPBR
RIFELER - WEMBEERES  Bilbzi R
HBENEEMBH - AP TERABENARR
EREMALTE FSORBEEAEE -

BAPERBEFE ST ASRMOETEELER
TR o R FEANELRMEBTEERE - X
REINRATTRE - NEEBEREGMBBRRES
PEEEFEAHRRAL -

PricewaterbouseCoopers, 21/F Edinburgh Tower, 15 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 4 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 47 & 2 H W = 7=

Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z——F+-A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
REVENUE A 5 20,161 48,266
Other income and gains, net B A R Es - F5E 5 970 491
Operating expenses PR (22,709) (23,692)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBiAT (B518),B5F 6 (1,578) 25,065
Income tax expense FriS i = 9 (41) (4,339)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ER (FR),wR (1,619) 20,726
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip2EWA
Available-for-sale investment: AIEHERSE -
Change in fair value, net of tax NEZE) - REE = (17)
Net gain transferred from equity T ER RN F R 6 - 15
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EREMEEWRA -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BRFi% - 2)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMWBAHEEE
FOR THE YEAR (1,619) 20,724
(LOSSYEARNINGS PER SHARE RATEBERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BFEAELER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (BR]) BA 12
Basic (HK cents) HAR GEN) (0.12) (VE
Diluted (HK cents) e C&FNl) (0.12) 1.8

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note 11 to ~ ANFERBSFHBEWE XM BHRERME -
the financial statements.

69REF142HMME AU E M B RROMA

The notes on pages 69 to 142 are an integral part of these £
consolidated financial statements. BEBS o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2012

2—?‘&? 2 ﬁ%ﬂﬁ}ﬁlﬁ

R=F-—&+=—A=1+—~

2012 2011
—F—-F T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
=3 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Plant and equipment BB & A 13 941 1,333
Intangible asset mEE 14 866 866
Deposits e 100 100
Total non-current assets ERENE EARRE 1,907 2,299
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables B S REWEIE 16 1,260 2,088
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE  He Rk
other receivables H At fEUFRIA 17 7,258 1,352
Investments at fair value through BAFEREREE
profit or loss FBRZIZE 18 26,877 28,078
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEEZES 19 41 78
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEEY 20 85,085 66,445
Total current assets TRENE EARRE 120,521 98,041
CURRENT LIABILITIES wEAE
Trade payables Z o EMNFIE Al 369 78
Other payables and accruals B ENE IE&FE;#%ﬁH 2 2,586 4,514
Tax payable PRI 1,928 3,277
Total current liabilities mENE EBRE 4,883 7,869
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFRE 115,638 90,172
Net assets BEFE 117,545 92,471
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners NARER AE(ERE
of the Company
Issued capital BT 23 14,400 12,000
Reserves it 25(a) 103,145 80,471
Total equity T AR ER 117,545 92,471
Total assets BEHAE 122,428 100,340
Total equity and liabilities KB ERRE 122,428 100,340

The notes on pages 69 to 142 are an integral part of these

YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick
E{EE
Director

EF

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

*—u— N \‘
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Year ended 31 December 2012 BE_Z——_F+-A=+—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
NG PN
Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation
Share Share reserve
Issued  premium Contributed option At Retained
capital  account  surplus  reserve  HERE profits Total
BERA ROEERE HARH ARERE EHRE  REER @t
Note HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit A7 AT AT AT AT AT A
(note 23) (note 25@)  (note 24)
(223 (Hitzsy)  (Witza)
At 1 January 2011 R=F——%-F-H 12,000 43,886 9,000 1990 2 320 70,105
Profit for the year EaET - - - - - 20726 20726
Other comprehensive income for theyear:  EREMAEMA :
Available-for-s2le investment: AEHHERE -
Change in fair value, net of tax NERE Rk - - - - (17) = (17)
Net gain transferred from reserve to HERREER MG
profit and loss on disposal EENER LTI ¥ ot L = 15 5 15
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZENAER - - - - 7)) 20,726 20,724
Equity-settled share option arrangements REEEDRET S 24 - - - 1,642 - - 1,642
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 EA’T**ﬁ"ﬁ_i‘ Ak
TRorE AR 12,000 43,386 9,000 3,632 - 23,953 9241
Total comprehensive income for the year EREEMALE - - - - - (1,619) (1,619)
Placing of new shares REHTR v 2400 22800 - - - - 2500
Share placement expenses RORERS - (788) - - - - (788)
Equity-settled share option arrangements  FRIERERERH p - - - 2,281 - - 2281
At 31 December 2012 R-Z2-—E+-F=1+-AH 14,400 65,898 9,000 5913 - 2,334 117,545
The notes on pages 69 to 142 are an integral part of these 5698 &5 142 H MM L AUt E BFSIRER BOAR K
consolidated financial statements. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #R&REREFK
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE—_Z—_—F+-HA=+—-HLEFE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REX(KNEERE
(Loss)/Profit before tax AT (E518), 5 A (1,578) 25,065
Adjustments for: AT RIBIEH T :
Interest income A EUA 5 (970) (478)
Depreciation e 6 427 497
Impairment of an intangible asset —HEMEERE 6 - 42
Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—TAREEE
investment & 7 EE 6 = 15
Fair value loss/(gain) on investments at A ERERER
fair value through profit or loss, net HIBR Z 18 &
ANTEEE
(fas) - 55 6 1,704 (9,207)
Equity-settled share option expense IR B MR AR R S 6 2,281 1,642
1,864 17,606
Decrease in trade receivables B S EBGRIBR D 828 263
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits  TE{J3RIE - &E R EAD
and other receivables PN FRIE (3EA0), A (5,884) 1,756
Increase in investments at fair value through  ZAFERIEZ =
profit or loss HIBR 2 &8 N (503) (17,629)
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients KREEEEZRESHD 37 24
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S ENFIE
2, Cld) 291 24)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables Hith e I8 & EET
and accruals BH ORd),/18m (1,928) 1,318
Cash (used in)/generated from operations IR (FRA)
Fii58R% (5,295) 3,314
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEBNEH (1,390) (1,310)
Net cash flows (used in)/from R (FrA),/
operating activities FrieIREeREFE (6,685) 2,004
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ BREZHHNEERE
Purchases of items of plant and equipment BEMRENREER 13 (35) (1,370)
Interest received BUFIE 948 478
Proceeds from disposal of an HE IR ERE
available-for-sale investment FT{S 5008 = 2,485
Increase in time deposits with REARRIIEE Z R0
original maturity of more than @A
three months when acquired TE BATF 5R3E h0 20 (22,036) (9,955)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEEFTAR
RemE 5 (21,123) (8,362)

The notes on pages 69 to 142 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2012

api I;',\_I}:Inl:lpldings Limited
SHRERBRAF

AERETMER

BE-Z-——HF+-"A=1+—HIEE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kiat FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEENRESRE
Proceeds from placing of shares B & M0 FTS RUA 23(a) 25,200 -
Share placement expenses Bii & A F 2 (788) -
Net cash flows from financing activities RMEEEMERS
M HE 24,412 =
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERREEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS B ERE (3,396) (6,358)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 438 & KIREHEY) 55,045 61,403
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERBERRLEZEEY
END OF YEAR 51,649 55,045
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EER AT
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHERR 20 9,336 6,569
Time deposits JE BATE 5K 20 75,749 59,876
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RE UGN R T
consolidated statement of financial position RIF e MRS EED 85,085 66,445
Time deposits with original maturity of REBARRIIHABEZR
more than three months when acquired =& A & E BifF 5K 20 (33,436) (11,400)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the LEReREXRPAE
consolidated statement of cash flows rIF e MBS EED 51,649 55,045

The notes on pages 69 to 142 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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SHEAFRAAE
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Statement of Financial Position B AR R 2R
As at 31 December 2012 ek e T
2012 2011
—EB——F —E——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBARIHIEE 15 21,198 20,130
Due from subsidiaries JEULBH B A R FRIE 5 44,910 =
66,108 20,130
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries JEUBIE A R E 15 - 46,711
Prepayments and other receivables TE IS FRIE Je EAth fE W SR IE 17 204 155
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEEY 20 44,739 8,221
Total current assets mE) & EERR 44,943 55,087
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Due to subsidiaries FERTBI B A Rk IE 15, 180 151
Accruals EstEH 327 100 23
Tax payable FERIER SR 36 -
Total current liabilities MENBERTE 316 174
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 44,627 54,913
Net assets BEFE 110,735 75,043
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITARA 23 14,400 12,000
Reserves & 25(b) 96,335 63,043
Total equity T 4REA 110,735 75,043
Total assets BEMRE 111,051 75,217
Total equity and liabilities Em kB EEE 111,051 75,217
YEUNG Kai Cheung Patrick CHAN Hok Leung
= 1ESR BRER
Director Director
EE EFE
The notes on pages 69 to 142 are an integral part of these 698 £ 5142 B MMt AUt A BMASHRERAERK

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Asian Capital Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 January 2010
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered address of the
Company is PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM"”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 June 2010
(the “Listing”).

The principal activity of the Company is investments holding.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) were principally engaged in the provision of
corporate advisory services and related activities, as well as
investment activities.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), as at 31 December 2011, the holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Master Link Assets Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. As at 31 December 2012, the Directors
considered that there was no holding company and ultimate
holding company due to the new placing occurred in 2012,
details of which are set out in note 23(a) to the financial
statements.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investments at fair value through profit or loss,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is also
the Group’s functional currency. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

RAEH

ERERAERABDA— MR _ZE—FTF—A
TEBRBERSHSEMNE22ERRE (—H
N—EEPIFEIM - et RIEET) ER S8
SHMKINEREBRAR - KRR
=R IE AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

AR GIN =T —FF AT N\BEE
BHMAaXZMARRAR (B 8I%KR
(TRIZEMR ) v ([ L) -

ARANEBRERHIREER

ARABREMBAR ([ AEE]) T2
HERHEXBEERSE RAEBEL - ARR
BIEE e

AprEE([EF]) RAE HE_T——
E+-"A=+—H AAAHNERAEREK
BEBR AR AREBE XS MK IH
Master Link Assets Limited = EE R AHM
—E - —FAPEFERESE AR FRZ
T _—F+ A=+ HUEERAFRR
BIERR AT - BB NGB R T
23(a) °

21RBEE

MBEBRERIRIBEBELGAE ([BAEEF
BAR ) BHENEBMBHREER ([FEY
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 3.

During the fourth quarter of the current financial year ended
31 December 2012, the Directors performed a review of
the operating model for the provision of corporate advisory,
underwriting and other related services including investments
as principal, particularly the presentation of certain
underwriting commission income received by the Group and
sub-underwriting commission expenses paid to third parties
as sub-underwriters in the income statement of the Group.
As a result of the review, the Directors considered that it is
appropriate to present these expenses as part of the operating
expenses, instead of netting them off against revenue.
Accordingly, the comparative figures of revenue and operating
expenses were restated to conform with the presentation
adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
changed from HK$44,945,000 to HK$48,266,000 and the
operating expenses were changed from HK$20,371,000 to
HK$23,692,000. There is no impact on the profit or loss, basic
and diluted earrings per share for the prior years.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the below revised HKFRS for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures

— Transfers of Financial Assets

The adoption of the revised HKFRS have had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

There are certain other revised HKFRSs but not considered
relevant to the Group.

070 Annual Report 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKAS 32
Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HK(RIC) - Int 20

Financial Instruments

Consolidated financial statements?

Joint Arrangements 2

Disclosure of interests?

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income’

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities *

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities>

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.3

072

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Information on those new and revised HKFRSs that are
expected to be relevant and significant are set out as
follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the
Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities,
the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that
is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented
in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder
of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the
Additions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EMEEARERNE BT RE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39
on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 January 2015.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements, builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control
as the determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements of the
parent company. The standard provides additional guidance
to assist in the determination of control where this is difficult
to assess. The group is yet to assess HKFRS 10’s full impact
and intends to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries that are previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 as a
result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS
12, and the consequential amendments to HKAS 27 from 1
January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required
to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair value
should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.31SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EMEMAERNEBY RS

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for
example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be
presented separately from items which will never be
reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2013.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of the above new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether the
above new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Inter-company transactions and balances between Group
companies are eliminated.

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is the
fair values at the acquisition date of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred (including contingent consideration
arrangement) and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed in the income statement as incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If
after assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
income statement as a bargain purchase gain. Subsequently,
goodwill is subject to impairment testing.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at fair value
at the acquisition date and considered as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does
not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2QAE RS HERME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets FemEERE

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

or

family and that person

()

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party:

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

20% to 50%
20% to 33'3%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QA RS BEBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or available-for-sale financial investments.
The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, available-for-sale investments,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, cash held on
behalf of clients and cash and cash equivalents.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in revenue in profit
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

080 Annual Report 2012

bt Bl

B RS R AR B

e i s =R

QAR BEME (&)

RERAEMERMEE (&)
AIEER R it B (&)

ERREEMNEREEDNR S A (AR
SEAKBESILEZEEER) R - %
MEBNRR-—RMERERENE—EH
MARNEENSREERE -

ASENTRMEEREBESRWHIA B
REMBYGIE  AREERE BATVE
RBaRIKZRE RKEFPHBEZREMU
kR KB L EEY -

RAETTE
SREEZREFTERINT A

BAFEREZ Xk EMEE

BAFERBaRIIGZEREERERIE
REME 2 EMEERNIGERE 15T /I
NPFERBRERIGZEREE - SREE
MAHELRBMMEER - AINBARE
RZMBEZEE - HWAVFERBRRIEKL
TREE  RMBRRRANRLFEAR
HAFEZHFRINBRRAER R K
A RTEEHFRITBEZECHEE
ZEARERFE - ZFERELFETIRE
TX [WzstER | #5I Z2 BRERHER

RINBEREIETE AR A FERERRYIE
ZEMEBEDRVBRERBEE  HARKS
BB S ERFEIRMIZE o



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When,
in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets. The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends
on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect
any financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option at designation as these
instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.
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082

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes
in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to profit or loss in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the
definition of loans and receivables and the Group has the
intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable
future or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the Group has the ability
and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial
asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and

either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAR HERE (£)
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) cMEERE (&)
Available-for-sale financial investments ARt ELFHKRE

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
The determination of what is “significant” or "'prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss.
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through
profit or loss if the income in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as loans and borrowings. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables and
other payables and accruals.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AE RS HERME (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined by reference to quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing
models.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QA RS BEBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions (Continued) BiE (E2)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

BRBIEERBRENEEMRENHRAH
BE EARREEMSHEERHHEEEK
JEA B (ERY B B8 A B 1) 5T 1 9 R 75 BT B K 7
At E o BWRRHEIBE ME M B EER S E
Fis °

REeRBEEEY

MEERERERME  RERREFEY
BREFERE EHEXNRBUEESHE
HIRERE (ZERBARERCHEEN
e HREEEFABRTIAR—KRER
BT =EAR2EH)  BARZREENE
RAEERSEIE—BNERITES

RN EME - REMASFENERE
FHEACRBTEX BRTUEFERBRGO
EREFFARMEERSBENEE ©

Frig®t

PRS T e BN EAT T SR AE B IR AE X » ER7E 1R
mARAIMNERHIAB BHANAEHRIREM
EHWARE RN ERER -

AEE B ERENAHRBREENRBET
IR B RS AR D S AT R S &
TRRBRHEHRCBEMKER DB
B (RBDE) @ Wit RAKERLMER
BXRERHRERENGE -

Annual Report 2012
i 1
—x ey O



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and in respect of
taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Annual Report 2012
—E-—ETH

B RS R AR B

e i s =R

QAR BEME (&)

FRE® (&)

BERBATIEREEE  RRSPREER
BEMHER LAY HHERE ONREEER
PRA SR 2R RS o

EERBERBIAE RN E 1 Z 8%
R ANBREIXZBEHAINRZ S (X5
By I 4 52 & € 51 a A S B SR B Al sk B 18D
THEEXEERAEMELENREENER
B RRERMBARMS R ERRE
i 1 2= BB (10 BE 5 422 1) 5 B 14 2 A MO 8K [l B
M BEABERUEZREN RERTARRE
el ERIERI -

BEERABERMBAININEREEZE - K
BRAREE R N AP ERAES T AR
PR o BETRIRE EN A A 5E NS & SR
FRIABRSH AT R G 125 - RBAHIER
RRARBARBBEEERER - E TS
SLERIN -

s EAMAMBRERUEZENEERRE
ETIARIAERER S HHIAIMNIR 5 (R
2 B I 48 %2 B & w1 i F) 3K 8 R A ik B =X
EBR) PMEERABMES &

o BIRBRHE R RS KA AN E
HERME - £ AR A RRARER
B M B N R ERS E RR At A AR A 4K
HER BB NS ERIETER A



BA RS AR AR B

=2 —£f=-A=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QA RS BEBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued) 8% (&)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) corporate advisory income, when the underlying services
have been provided or the underlying transactions have
been completed, in accordance with the terms of the
service agreement;

(b) placing and underwriting service income/commission,
when the related services are provided or the relevant
significant acts have been completed in accordance with
the terms of the agreement or deal mandate;
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

() securities dealing commission and investment income,
on a trade date basis, or the right to receive such
income have been established, except for those interest
income included in investment income which would be
accounted for under effective interest rate method; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note
24 and 25 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

an Capital Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. All differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are taken to profit or loss. Changes
in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates based
on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate
so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance and its future results would be
affected.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of unlisted investment

The unlisted investments have been valued based on a
valuation technique. This valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about assumptions that are mainly
based on recent market transactions and other conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. The fair value
of the unlisted investment as at 31 December 2012 was
approximately HK$1,768,000 (2011: HK$9,999,000). Further
details are included in note 18 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group focuses on the provision of corporate advisory
services and related activities, as well as investment activities.
Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, is focused on the operating
results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are
integrated and no discrete financial information is available.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of directors that
makes strategic decisions.

BA RS AR AR B

=2 —£f=-A=+—H
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FLEBRER L FIE

EETIREBRIE — B ERATEITEE -
LA ERAEEREERETHREHEME
BB RIT TSRS REMIEROEBREIE
Wit e R ——F+_-_A=+—H3¥kL
MIEERN A FELAE1,768,0008 T (ZF—
—% 9,999,000/ 7T) - BAE —FFHIFH
R R MTE18 ©

REDHESR

AEEFFRERCEBRRS LHEEE
% ARREES - ERD B MFERA
mE ARAKEERES  WAAKEE
BEERRESRNERNEPRAEEER
RMeEXRE BYBBYYHERAIHER -
AmEAZ DN - TEZERKER
REROPELFEEEDHMNRE  EFS
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Geographical information 1th B &

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KEIEBEF LA
2012 2011
=F—=F = T W
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FE
Hong Kong B 20,148 48,266
Mainland China =e}5ilyN 173 13 =
20,161 48,266

The revenue information above is based on the location
of the customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

-
L

PR M RE

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

4. RESHER (&)

HWEER (&)
(b) FRBEE

2012
—E——F

HK$000
TFET

Hong Kong B

1,807

2011
it
HK$'000
FHBIT

22199

The non-current asset information is based on the

location of assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the major customers amounting to

10% or more of the Group’s revenue is set out below:

FRBEEERDERBEMEER

Y TEFEHTE -

FREFEHR

KEZEREFEF (FEEAEEEANI0%

A L) U AFIIIT ¢

2012
—E——F

HK$000
FET

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C BEC

3,065
2,526

2011
—F—4
HK$'000
T

11,400
1,001
1,250
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R IR I EE

31 December 2012 =t

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
corporate advisory income, placing and underwriting service
income/commission and securities dealing commission and
investment income during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net, is as

—=%+t=HA=+—~R

WA ~ BB AR Wz - FEE

WATREIARBHZ XM - RFEANDEE
BUWA - EERBERBEA B KE
RHMERIRERA -

WA~ BEfts A R s - FREAITANT

follows:
2012 2011
—EB—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue 'ON
Corporate advisory income R EREERUA 15,577 17,043
Placing and underwriting service B K B S AR TS
income/commission (note (a)) WA/ B& (K@) 2,099 19,440
Securities dealing commission and investment FBHER PSR ERA
income (note (b)) (Hiztm)) 2,485 11,783
20,161 48,266
Other income and gains, net Hittlt AR Wz - FEE
Interest income from bank balances IRITAEEREV A B HA 970 478
Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale HE A HEE
investment ®E BB - (15)
Others Hib - 28
970 491
Notes: HiaE
(a) During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December (@ B F——F A= o Hk S T F

2011, the Group carried out underwriting and/or sub-
underwriting activities for certain customers to earn commission.
In 2011, the Group carried out a sub-underwriting activity for
a securities company for the placement of HK$760,000,000
by a company listed on the main board (the “Main Board”)
of the Stock Exchange, for which the Group received a sub-
underwriting income of HK$11,400,000.

(b) Included in the securities dealing commission and investment
income was a net fair value loss on investments at fair value
through profit and loss for approximately HK$1,704,000
(2011: gain of HK$9,207,000). The aggregate underlying fair
value of the investments held as at 31 December 2012 was
approximately HK$26,877,000 (2011: HK$28,078,000).

+=—A= + HIFFE A EEBE FEF#E
TEHER 27 EHETIEXAFEREE > R=
F——F  REFHE—FEFHFLNRJETT—IB
BHETIE B—FXRBIAMER ([FK)) L
TTHI 2 Gl E 760,000,000;% ;T B9 HR 17+ 255
B B UCER 5 E 55 A 11,400,000;8 7T °

(b) FHFXBIE RIZEWRA CIT A FEREZD
KON IR E ) N FEEEFEAT 1,704,000
BT (ZF——14F : 2:9,207,000/8T) ° R
—E——Ff A= —HARENZERE
BB B FEAERE#) A26,877,000,87 (—F
——1%F : 28078,000/%T) °
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31 December 2012

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

6. BRBiAT (B518), EF

A) NHIEIE :

2012
—E——fF
HK$’000
FET
Depreciation e 13 427
Minimum lease payments under operating THREFLEHEE
leases on land and buildings =EBESNR 2,662
Auditors’ remuneration IZ SR &
Audit fees EZER 580
Non-audit fees FEZER 180
Impairment of an intangible asset — IR EERE 14 -
Placing and underwriting service Bl & & B SH AR 7%
expense/commission Fx /A& 1,596
Employee benefit expense (including Directors’ & 218 FBi%
remuneration (note 7)): (BIEESF
(HiaE7))
Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses I&- %%
VERG M AEAL 10,426
Equity-settled share option expense e 4 B R R AR 1
Fs 2,281
Pension scheme contributions RIKRSETEIfR
(defined contribution scheme) (FEREHIETE)) 242
Dividend income* & B U A =
Realised gain on fair value through profit or &2 F(ERA
loss and other investment* Bm&RIIR
IR K
E &~ (4,189)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investments at BAFERBRR
fair value through profit or loss* SRR 2 1B/
NTEEE
(Yeam) * 1,704
Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—IEAHLE
investment (transferred from equity & 7 E5ia
on disposal) (HERFBE#ER
) =

AEBOBRTA (B1R), 8 MEHKR /(G

2011
S
HK$'000
FIBIT

497
1,516
300

78

72

3,321

11,500
1,642

178
(45)

(@P53:18

(9,207)

15

At 31 December 2012, the Group had no forfeited

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension scheme in future years (2011: Nil). H(ZT——F: %)

*  These items are included in “Securities dealing commission and i’
investment income” (note 5).

it5) — A °
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

7. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

BA RS AR AR B

—E-—_H+-A=+—H

7. EEEHM

FEESHMRIEBZAAIRRES LR
AR BB R TURAIFE 16 1IRARENT -

Group
KEH
2012 2011
—E——F —=2—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 504 504
Other emoluments: Hipg -
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e - RBE TEALK
benefits in kind F= S 2,738 SN/
Equity-settled share option expense HXTE &8 KRR AE R ST 1,213 874
Pension scheme contributions RIS EHEIHR 28 24
3,979 4,675
4,483 5,179

Certain Directors have been granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 24(a) to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options which has been recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
Directors’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no share options have been granted in
respect of the Directors’ services to the Group under the
Share Option Scheme (2011: Nil). Further details of the
Share Option Scheme is set out on note 24(b).

ETESIRFHAKENRBREARA]
B R QR SR R AR B E R R
BRE - THBEAR P REME24(a) © %
FRBEENATFEEREBHANEERA
FER - EINE B HERE - Mat AEAIF
ERHBHREANSBECHRIALESZFHTME
BA-

FA - WERESHAK BB RBRIERBK
REEIRHRARE (—F——F  #) - AW
RERTEIAYE — ZFBHIINHITE24(b) °
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive Directors

2012

PR M RE

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

7. EEHM (&)
(a) BUFHITES
—E—_—F

Equity-settled

share option

expense Total
Fees RELEN  remuneration
Hue R X ez
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAETT
Mr. Chan Kai Nang BRESBE A4 120 173 293
Mr. Tsui Pui Yan wIMBSEE 120 - 120
Mr. Yi Xigun KGR A 120 173 293
360 346 706

Equity-settled

share option
expense Total
Fees IR E Y remuneration
e RHRAER 2 [l GEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Mr. Chan Kai Nang FRERBESE A 120 125 245
Mr. Tsui Pui Yan Rm2 4% 120 - 120
Mr. Yi Xiqun KGEESTE 120 1725 245
360 250 610

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2011: Nil).
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31 December 2012 —E——H+=-H=+—8
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 7. EEFHM (&)
(b) Executive Directors and a non-executive (b) BITEERFHTES
Director
Salaries,
allowances,
bonuses
and benefits Equity-settled Pension
in kind share option scheme
e expense contributions Total
Fees JEBN B4 BRELEHN  BHKE€5E remuneration
e REYEFN FARERX R Gk

HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FRT FRT TR FAT FAT

2012 ==
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Yeung Kai IREBEE
Cheung Patrick
Mr. Chan Hok Leung PREAR S04

Non-executive Director: EHITES

Mr. Xin Luo Lin FERMEE
2011 S o=t
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Yeung Kai TBEREE
Cheung Patrick 12 1,620 208 52 1,852
Mr. Chan Hok Leung RERTAE 12 2,057 208 12 2,289
24 BI6; 416 24 4141
Non-executive Director:  EHITES :
Mr. Xin Luo Lin ERMEE 120 100 208 B 428
144 B 624 24 4,569
During the year ended 31 December 2012, there was Ry — — 8 — A e N
no arrangement under which any directors waived WMEEENFERNNENREIRETMEFAD
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year HMZH (ZFE——F : ) o

(201 1: nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2011: two) Directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2011: three) highest paid employees
who are not Directors for the year are as follows:

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

8. A GRE¥HMES

FR AfUESFMETREMML (ZF—
—F W) EF - HHMFBHR LXMW
27 FA BT (ZF——F : =f)
FESESFTHEENFMFBOT

Group

REE
2012 2011
—EB——fF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and benefits in kind 4% ~ 2BE ~ TEA N

BEYHa 1,653 2,211
Equity-settled share option expense [t 45 Y R AR B <2 472 300
Pension scheme contributions RIREBETEIHR 41 36
2,166 2,547

The remuneration of the three highest paid employees who
are not Directors fell within the following band is as follows:

MR TEEN=(IFEZRSFHERD
BT

Number of employees

EERE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——f
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = %1,000,000/8 7T 3 3
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Asi 'Ié_l}:;l:lpldings Limited
L SREARBRAR

BA RS AR AR B

—E——H+=-H=+—H

9. FRISFHBEX
BEANGHERERNERBELENMFER
Fom AI816.5% (ZZT——4F : 16.5%)89 %%
A A o

2012 2011
—E——F —T——f
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Group: NEEF :

Current — Hong Kong BER — B

Charge for the year FERAS 6 4,268
Underprovision in prior years BEFENREDE 35 71
Total tax charge for the year FEMBHZERE 41 4,339

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/
profit before tax at the statutory rate in which the Group is
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as
follows:

ERERARARERERRMNEAERXAGE
RBR AT (BS1R) /i M e B T B 3 B IR B R
BERGTENBIRF X HRRNT

2012 2014}
—E—_—F —T——%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FEIT
(Loss)/profit before tax MRl (BE), % F (1,578) 25,065
Tax at the statutory tax rate BAERETER
18 (260) 4,136
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BRI BT HARRN AR I
previous periods EOEEES 35 71
Income not subject to tax BERBA (160) (79)
Expenses not deductible for tax A HIEL R X 467 204
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B) BT HiE R IE A1 (17) (14)
Others HoAh (24) 21
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BRAEBBRHERTE
VIR B ST a1 4,339

There was no significant unprovided deferred tax in respect
of the year and at the end of each reporting period.

FARSHERR  MEEBARKRBEL
BiIA e
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

11.

OF THE COMPANY

Of the Group’s loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$1,619,000 (2011: a profit of HK$20,726,000), a
profit of HK$9,126,000 (2011: loss of HK$2,746,000) has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 25(b)).

DIVIDENDS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: Nil).

12.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of 1,389,152,542 shares in issue for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: 1,200,000,000).

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings
per share presented for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011 as the share options had anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings per share.
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10. AR REE AR (BE)HEF

11.

12.

EAREEARRES AFELEE1,619,000
s PR et = A | 90)372.6,000/7 J5)
H o 5 A9,126,0008 7T (ZE2——& : B8
2,746,000/ 7T) B RAR B0 B 1 WK A R
2 (PFEE25(0)) °

8=\

Exg ((8Fgl) TEEsEBE_Z——F
T e Y IR (R E
FE) e

AAFEBRERBREARGER
(E518) &BF

BRERX (BB, BRFEBIHIEAARLR
BRESFEABRGEE (BER)&ZFRRE
2T+ fA-+-HILIEERAMNE
15 B % 17 A £01,389,152,542 8 st E 15 1
—ZT——4 :1,200,000,0000%) °

HRARENSREARF AGREEHE
B SEdnNEE 8- —FR=_T——
FH+_A=+—BLEFEMEINERER
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

13.PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

PSRRI RE

=B-—-S+=A=+-—8H

31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011 and
at 1 January 2012:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2012, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions
Depreciation provided during the year

At 31 December 2012, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2012:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

13. % E R & it
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment Motor
B #E vehicles Total
ST RE Mgt
HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
HE A
S =ati-H
RZT——%
b i pawl=| Y
RZT—Z4F
SR T
(DN
ZEITE
RESE
RZT—=F
== P
kR 2508
NE
FRFTERE
RZZE—ZF
clmle o I
HRZFHE
RZT—=F
oF i — i B
(DN
ZEHE
IREFE
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31 December 2012 —E-——_F+=-A=+—H
13.PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13.BER&E (&)
Group (Continued) rEE (&)
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment Motor
R HE vehicles Total
Kk#&E RE st
HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
31 December 2011 —_E——5F
+=A=t-H
At 1 January 2011: RZE——%F
o JEpch |
Cost (DN 1,599 1,106 2,705
Accumulated depreciation ZiihE (1,443) (802) (2,245)
Net carrying amount REFE 156 304 460
At 1 January 2011, net of R=Z——4
accumulated depreciation R e
MR R E 156 304 460
Additions NE 52 1,318 1,370
Depreciation provided during the year FRIERE (114) (383) (497)
At 31 December 2011, net of T =S —rE
accumulated depreciation TR S A IER,
MR RGHIE 94 1,239 1,333
At 31 December 2011: R-B——F
Flieci e ihpe e
Cost (DN 1,651 2,424 4,075
Accumulated depreciation Z:HiE (1,557) (1,185) (2,742)
Net carrying amount BRHFHE 94 1,239 1,333
14. INTANGIBLE ASSET 14.8BFEE
Group
REH
2012 2011
—E—CF —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FExT FEIT
At 1 January =A== [E 866 938
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRIE (Bit6) - (72)
At 31 December =A== r—Ig] 866 866
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

14.INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)

15.

The intangible asset of the Group represents the cost of a
non-refundable club membership.

The Directors are of the opinion that the intangible asset has
an indefinite useful life. Accordingly, the intangible asset will
not be amortised.

sia '%Ill-Holdings Limited
- SHEXERAT

EATE AR AL
=ne = =R H

14.8F8E (&)
AEB Y EREEATTRESHMELERA -

ESRRENEERAITHECHFS -
It B EEM TSR -

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. R BARNKRE
Company
AT
2012 2011
—F—=F = - waa
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETARD ¢ I'AKAK 18,156 18,156
Capital contribution in respect of employee EHEREARG A

share-based compensation AR E 3,042 1,974
21,198 20,130

The capital contribution in respect of employee share-based
compensation relates to share options granted by the
Company to employees of its subsidiary, under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 24(a) to the financial statements.

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s assets and liabilities of HK$44,910,000 (2011:
HK$46,711,000) and HK$180,000 (2011: HK$151,000),
respectively, are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, two subsidiaries
with total investment costs of HK$2,000,000 were sold to
an independent third party at a consideration of HK$78 with
reference to its net carrying amount.

REBEADA W ERDRFEE R 2 RBRER
g HESRARREMBARNEERH
REENEERDMELE  ElE2E—F
FBEEN P mERME24)

RARFEE R A EP A FE IR FE B
AN RZIED B 544,910,0008 7 (Z T ——
£ : 46,711,000/ 7T) K& 180,000/ 7T (=&
——% : 151,000 7T) AEEKR  £ERE

REREER -

i e - U R H T R
4818 & Ak 7R %2,000,0003% 7T K /i 51 H BB A &)
R2EHEFEFEEANISETHRELET
BB -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

15.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B RS R AR B

"

AR 2| = e =

15.AMBATNRE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBABNFFBEAT ¢
Percentage
Place of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation issued ordinary attributable to
and operations share capital the Company Principal
Name AL R ERTEER RREELR activities
8 BN BRAHE AL TEER
Direct  Indirect
HE i
Asian Capital (Corporate B (MERE) Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Finance) Limited BRAH Bt 10,000,000/87C corporate
advisory
services
R
ERR%
Asian Capital (Resources) B (BR) Hong Kong HK$10 - 100 Provision of
Limited BRAR BE 1087 corporate
advisory
services
RADE
BRR%
Best Remedy Investments Best Remedy The British US$20,000 100 - Investment
Limited Investments Limited Virgin Islands 20,000 7T holding
(the “BVI")/ ER
Hong Kong
RERLES )/
Corporate Wise Limited Corporate Wise Limited ~ The BVY/ US$20,000 100 - Investment
Hong Kong 20,0005 7T holding
RERLES/ REER
Dragon Legend Investments  EEEEARBGR AR The BVI/ US$1 100 - Investment
Limited Hong Kong Ev holding
KBELHS RALR
Well Baly Limited HENERAR Hong Kong HK10,000 - 100 Investment
9 10,000/ 7T holding
REZER
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

BA RS AR AR B

—E——H+=-H=+—H

Trade receivables

B 7 RWIR

16. 8 5 EWRFE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—_—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
1,260 2,088

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are due upon
the issuance of invoices. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables arising from the provision of corporate advisory
services are non-interest-bearing. The receivables from
brokers arising from securities dealing by the Group’s clients
are interest-bearing at the prevailing saving rate offered by
the banks in Hong Kong and are repayable on demand.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables which are not

AEFERATFHE S HR T B RN
BH o NEEFRKAEFBRBE “ﬂitaiaﬁ’]ﬂ?
WHIE - MR EERTBEEREEARRE
et - IRECEBEERBELENE HE
WHRBRRE - AAKBEFPEFRFEL
MR L RIBEIRBTEBRITAREFX
FEFR - WEREKEER - AEEW KR
SEE S RYIAGHRE A EMERmE
ISR EE G

R|EHR ERBEZRHRNGREERD

considered to be individually or collectively impaired as at B I ENRIENRER ST (TEERERIE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates Besg(E) IO :
and net of provisions, is as follows:
Group
RERE
2012 2011
—EB-—F —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F/ET
Current to 30 days BIHAZ=30H 661 933
31 to 60 days 31260H 329 150
61 to 90 days 61£290H 211 80
Over 90 days im0 H 59 925
1,260 2,088
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

16.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All of the above receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have good track records with the Group, or have
subsequently settled the amounts due to the Group. The

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

16.E5 EWFIE (&)

VA L Ffr att 2 280 348 2R Bk (8 P8 WO SR TR B 5 £
AEBAEBERFERCBEAZROEELRSE
BRANBLEF AR EZRSEHNEHR
DR AR 28U E - B EA L % F RN

Directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment {ELRE R -
is necessary in respect of these balances as the balances are

still considered fully recoverable.

A LB ZEKRRENEE RS SHEENEH

the corresponding due dates. 5] ©

The invoice dates of the above trade receivables are equal to

17.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17.F84FE - &R EMEWRFE

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE N
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=F N e = F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FHET FET
Prepayments T FIE 321 301 187 151
Deposits and other receivables &% & Hith el 7k I8 6,937 1,051 17 4
7,258 eb2) 204 155

P BEESER RSN HRRE - Ll R
BN G EE BT B EIERCENELA
FENBRESARBYHIARE -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to cash
held with brokers as well as receivables for which there was
no recent history of default.

114 Annual Report 2012
—E-—ETH



"?‘\-._ .L s *—I. L. Al L ..‘.-.-__ 3" ¥ :I:::'.‘. L o s !
g i | i Sl
M g 'I}:Holdin s Limited g % l#
r A an T
al n C g ._-"-H":_ﬂ?

| SOEXERAR

Notes to Financial Statements B &R IR I EE

31 December 2012 =F-—-£+=HA=+—H
18.INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18.EAFERBERIIEZRE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong listed equity BB LTHIRERE - &MHE
investments, at market value 25,109 18,079
Unlisted investment, at fair value FEEMRE - RAFE 1,768 9,999
26,877 28,078
At 31 December 2012, no individual investment constituted RZEB—ZF+ZA=+—80 ' S&EER%
over 10% of the total assets of the Group. BEASBEEELABEBRBI0% °
At 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts of the shares REZE——F - A=+—H x&£BRHN
in the following company held by the Group exceeded 10% TRAFAFROERIERBNEEEER
of the total assets of the Group. BE/I10% °
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued interest held by
Name incorporation share capital the Group*  Principal activities
AEE R
=1 M B SZ 3t B ERITRAFE ERBEoEr FEER
Green International Cayman Islands  Ordinary shares of 6.49%  Manufacturing and
Holdings Limited REHS HK$0.01 each trading of toys and
("Green International”) FIEE0.0157T recreational products
FEMBIRIZEAR B R A A EORER Gl BEREEAR
(THEAREIRR 1) EEER
*  The percentage of shares held by the Group is based on the * AEEARRGHES I TEREEER =
number of ordinary shares held by the Group over the Green — —FHRF A RSB ARE B AL IE B £ 20 E
International’s total issued share capital in 2011. BITRABILL VT E -
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Notes to Financial Statements by e

31 December 2012 e g L JE| S A ealE

19. CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS 19.0°FEFFENRE
The Group’s licensed subsidiary maintains a segregated AEERNFIRINE AR RETHRE L
trust account with a licensed bank to hold clients’ monies EFEERP  LEMEBEXBREFEELRN
arising from its normal course of business. This subsidiary BEHIE ZMNBAREBEFPRENER
has classified the clients’ monies as cash held on behalf of BEMBHRARRDEEEE THRE,F
clients under the current assets section of the consolidated EWHe  BHREHEPRBEXEBELRL
statement of financial position and recognised the WHAmMAEELE  AAERSHERT-®
corresponding payables to the respective clients on the RIBAEREMNRIE - AEBTBEARTF K
grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of HEEEB HE -

clients’ monies. The Group is not allowed to use clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.

20.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20BERBEEEY
Group Company
KEE EAT

2012 2011 2012 2011
N T = T Rl — T F
HK$'000 BENCISXUl  HK$'000 IS0
FET FBTT FET TR

Cash and bank balances e NIR1TES 9,336 6,569 5,471 1,266
Time deposits TEHITE R 75,749 59,876 39,268 6,955
85,085 66,445 44,739 8,221
Less: Time deposits with original & : RZIH B8
maturity of more than ={EA#
three months EHEFER (33,436) (11,400) (18,226) -

51,649 55,045 26,513 8,221
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

21. TRADE PAYABLES
Included in trade payables are client monies of HK$41,000

(2011: HK$78,000).

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand (2011: repayable on demand).

The age of the trade payables excluding client monies at the
end of the reporting period, based on the settlement due
date, is current to 30 days (2011: current to 30 days).

22.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

T o Bia ¥ AT b R y
YR AT
. = o i

BA RS AR AR B

—E——H+=-H=+—H

21.E5 ENRE
HIAE 5 JE R 3E AR F 5I841,000%8 7T
—E——4 : 78,000/7T) °

BSEARANARERAREREE (=
T——4  FREREE) -

RBEMR - SRR (FPRERKRIN)
MR (EXNEREIHA) RENHA=E30A (=
T——F : AI#E30H) -

22 HENREREER

Group Company
REE /N

2012 2011 2012 2011
—2-—F Pl —2-—fF ekl
HK$000 INSTR  HKS000 [NETSE0Y
FET T FET THET

Other payables E e sRIE 1,079 924 - 3
Accruals FEETER 1,507 3,590 100 23
2,586 4,514 100 23

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of one month (2011: one month).

Hit N RIBREE N FHEEHR S —E
SO — o el SN
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

23.SHARE CAPITAL

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

23. &

Number of shares Nominal value

R EE HE
Note HK$
Kt BT
Ordinary shares of BREE0.01H T
HK$0.01 per share B & AR
Authorised: ERE
As at 31 December 2011, AT e B
1 January 2012 and Sihe o =
31 December 2012 Sl RIS
EKZTEDF
it oot llE] 10,000,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
As at 1 January 2012 R-E—=—F—-H—H 1,200,000,000 12,000,000
Placing of shares FERR( @ 240,000,000 2,400,000
As at 31 December 2012 A e e = e 1,440,000,000 14,400,000
Note: Kt -

(@) A conditional placing agreement dated 8 March 2012

(the “Placing Agreement”) was entered into between
the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Asian
Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited (“Asian Capital”) in
relation to the placing of up to 240,000,000 new shares
of the Company by Asian Capital on a best effort basis
pursuant to the terms of the Placing Agreement (the
“Placing”). The Placing was successfully completed on
19 March 2012. An aggregate of 240,000,000 shares
were placed to not less than six independent placees.
The placing price was HK$0.105 per share, and the net
proceeds from the Placing amounting to approximately
HK$24 million are used by the Group for general
working capital and business development purposes.

Share options

Details of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the share options issued under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are included in note 24(a) to the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

24.SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contributed to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme include directors, senior management,
certain employees and officers, and consultants of the
Group. The share options were approved and granted
by the Company on 10 June 2010.

The number of share options upon their exercise was
equal to 120,000,000 ordinary shares, being 10% of
the Company’s issued ordinary shares at the date of
the Listing. The options must be exercised within two
to ten years following the Listing of the Company, and
the exercise price has been fixed at the placing price of
Listing.

All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were granted on 10 June 2010 and no
further share options can be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme thereafter.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

BA RS AR AR B

—E——H+=-H=+—H

24. AR RESHE
(a) BRI ERNRKRESE

ARREEB X AFARERT R ETE
([BERAFBERMARREE]) - KA@
HASEXEBKNELERNEERZ
ﬁ%%#ﬁ@iﬁ@ BIXAFEER
h%+ﬂmA§%/A%@%$%l
WES - BEE HTEERAER
LA&EEF’:-EJ $’Aﬂﬁ(\\_f—$¢/\)ﬂ+
B #EE & % R -

ROFEENRRESHE BER
120,000,0000% & Ak - BIARA RN LT
HEIE T ERARAI10% © 25 RARE
WNERARNR EMEMETFRITHE -
MiTEENEZE LM EEERE

ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁm
FERBREER-_Z—ZFATHER
- MERKGAE Eﬁéﬂﬂﬁ%%m
RBAERT SR h A R -

REELEE THAEAZTERE KRR
RAG LIREZHER -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

24.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following share options

were outstanding under the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year:

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

24. BRIETE (&)
(a) BRAREARRENE (&)

FRRE B IR E AR &=
ARITEE BN T

2012 2011
—®--F —T——F
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options exercise price of options

MEFLHITREE RREHE WL ASEE R HEEE

HK$ per share (N HK$ per share ‘000

BRET K ERET FR

At 1 January ®—HA—H 0.2 92,000 0.2 106,500
Forfeited during the year FRE R 0.2 (5,850) 0.2 (14,500)
At 31 December V= A s 0.2 86,150 0.2 92,000

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at
period are as follows:

2012

Number of options

the end of the reporting

Exercise price*

R E IR A RTTEABRAENTTEE
RITERIT -

—_E—_—F

Exercise period

RREHE TEE* 1TER
‘000 HKS$ per share
T ZRET
9,200 0.2 10 June 2012 to 9 June 2020
ZHERNATREZZEZEANA
17,100 0.2 10 June 2013 to 9 June 2020
= S Bl Eiss =2 ey s AfH
25,650 0.2 10 June 2014 to 9 June 2020
—EMENEFEE_E_ZTF/NANE
34,200 0.2 10 June 2015 to 9 June 2020
—E-RENATEE=E_FFNANA
86,150
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Notes to Financial Statements B &R IR I EE

31 December 2012 —E——_fF+-A=t+-—H
24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 24. ARRESTEI (&)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BERABBRERMARETE (&)
2011 T
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RAESE IfEE* 1715
‘000 HK$ per share
FHR FZRGETT
9,200 0.2 10 June 2012 to 9 June 2020
—— & NAt+tHE_ZTE_FFANA
18,400 0).22 10 June 2013 to 9 June 2020
— =) ATHRAE_FT_FFANH
27,600 0.2 10 June 2014 to 9 June 2020
—mFEANATREZE-EF,XANA
36,800 0% 10 June 2015 to 9 June 2020

:g_ﬁi/‘_\ﬂ‘f‘afz 7—7¢/\H}LE

92,000
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to © RRETEERETHRIAR ?i’?ff
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other AR R AR BB i B E B =
similar changes in the Company’s share capital. LAGR# -
The fair value of the share options granted during the HE-_Z-ZTF+-"A=+—HILEFE
year ended 31 December 2010 was approximately B 8RR A T {8 4915,000,000
HK$15,000,000 (approximately HK$0.125 each) of BT (B #0.12587L) - EH A H
which the Group recognised a share option expense REBEE_FE-——FF+-A=+—HIF
of HK$2,281,000 during the year ended 31 December EARERRIRERS 52,281,000 5T
2012 (2011: HK$1,642,000). —E——4 : 1,642,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

24.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2010 was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

24. AR RESTE (&)

(a) BXABRENRRESSE (&)
BE_T-TH+-_A=+—-AI&EE
BHEREEERRERFEDREE
BEERA-TEE  SEEREZER
RRAE 0 152k R IS A 5t » &R FIRAT

upon which the options were granted. The following AR R BR -
table lists the inputs to the model used:
2010
A
Dividend yield (%) % 8% (%) 3.60
Expected volatility (%) TEHRR 18 (%) 87.47
Exercise multiple 1TEfEE 3.00
Exit rate (%) TRE(%) 20.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) =R R AE(%) 2.75

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that
the volatility with reference to other similar companies
is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 86,150,000 (2011: 92,000,000) share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 86,150,000 (2011:
92,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$861,500 (2011:
HK$920,000) and share premium of HK$16,368,500
(2011: HK$17,480,000) (before issue expenses).
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

24. BRIETE (&)
(a) BERAPMBEAZERETE (&)

24.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 86,150,000 (2011: 92,000,000) share
options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 5.9% (2011:
7.7%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

(b) Share Option Scheme

On 7 June 2010, the Company adopted a share option
scheme which became effective on 18 June 2010
(the “Share Option Scheme”) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date. The Company operates the Share
Option Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme included
the Directors and employees of the Group and other
individuals as determined by the Directors on the basis
of their contribution to the success of the development
and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of Listing. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

RAFMBEHRREMEBH XA
AR & B XA R B E AT R AR E G
£l B86,150,000h (= T — — F:
92,000,00017) ®KRITERIKE - HBE
RARRRZBBEZEITRMDA5.9% (=
s 7)) o

R &

REZ—TFNA+H - RARRHA—
BRBENE  ER-_Z2—ZF XA+
NBEER ([REAERTE]) - MEFERE
AESHEAER] - B A% AR ERI0F -
ARAEERBRENE  UAHAKH
EBRNELERNAERSEE D
MBS EER) - RS EINAERSHE
ERRES AKBREERESHESE
HAKEERMEREFLEMAEEE
ERMEMAL -

BRI ERF A RIFR B & R AR AT
{A] H b SR B R A 81 % h #O 1) R AT 2 RBR
BESHE/SBSEREETERARF
REMBMEETERMOMI0% - RER
B 1218 A MR A A 317 T R
RESH 8 R AR A AMEAR B At 3R Ak A 5 &I %
RERZEENRNESEMERRAR
BEAR B BTRMI1% o EA#E—
R B B UL R FR A SR AR AR AR R R K
TR
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31 December 2012

24 AREE (2)
(b) RIRAERE (7)

24.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive Directors. In
addition, any share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date upon
which the share options is granted or the expiry date of
the Share Option Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the Directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the date of the share options is
granted, (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme.
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25. RESERVES
(a) Group

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the

Listing, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereafter.

BA RS AR AR B

—E——H+=-H=+—H

25. & 1E

(a) &K HE

E/\ﬁéﬁ

HEFH2HR

=
RA

MRBEFENAREREELER
EARBED -

AKERNBARBIEN EMATREER
Y O B /BB 2 R (D EE AR B ML 1R HE 7T
AT E BT R R E{E RS -

(b) Company (b) &2 7]
Retained
Share Share earnings/
premium  Contributed option  (Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
REEF/
R EER BARs ARERE (RAER) @zt
Note HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
izt FET FET BT FET BT
At 1 January 2011 IR =t 43,745 19,000 1,990 (588) 64,147
Total comprehensive FRNZEYEES
income for the year - - - (2,746) (2,746)
Equity-settled share RERERRRE
option arrangements ZhE 24 & = 1,642 4 1,642
At 31 December 2011 N s
and 1 January 2012 A= 1B
“E——f&F
=R [l 43,745 19,000 3,632 (3,334) 63,043
Total comprehensive FREARGEE
income for the year - - - 9,126 9,126
Placing of shares RERH 22,800 = 8 3 22,800
Share issue expenses a5 (915) = = L (915)
Equity-settled share REEENRIRE
option arrangements rei 24 - - 2,281 - 2,281
At 31 December 2012 =
=R= 65,630 19,000 5913 5792 96,335
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31 December 2012 e

25.RESERVES (Continued) 25. %1 (&)

(b) Company (Continued)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the
Listing, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are vested but yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained earnings should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

(b) &xAF] (&)

KARBABGIENR ETWATRIEEAR
WK B ARG AT EBBR LT E
1TRRME BEITH AR R IR EE R 2
B o

REERFREBEEACERLDABEER KR
ERRBENAFE  HiEE—PRESR
R IEHMERM T2 AN B RAAR D BER
IRRHH S BR - Z 2 EBR AR
REEETERERERMNEER > X
et 48 8 SR S 8 JE o S R W - R @ 88 A
RE AR °

26. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 26. BEHLN L HE

As lessee

The Group leases its office premises under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
of eighteen months to two years (2011: one to two years).

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

EREBEA

AEBERBREHENLZHEEARLE
X ZEWFEANNBIEEASTNEAE
ME(ZT——F: —EWF) o

o

R-Z-——&+-A=+-B A£EHEH
1R85 LA TS EAR 1 6 7 AT 3 S AR A0 B
2 KA BIERS

Group
REE
2012 A1
—E——F —=—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Within one year G2 2,562 2580
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEZFTHE
(BRERMF) 1,281 L.
3,843 2,535
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

27. COMMITMENTS

Except for the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 26 above, the Group did not have any significant
commitment as at 31 December 2012. As at 31 December
2011, there was an underwriting commitment to take
up certain Hong Kong listed equity investments of
HK$3,274,000.

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group generated corporate advisory income in
the sum of approximately HK$1,543,000 (2011:
HK$519,000) from a Hong Kong listed company
client. The non-executive Director was a former
non-executive director of the client. The income
so derived was determined by reference to market
rates and agreed on an arm’s length basis.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group generated corporate advisory income
of approximately HK$650,000 (2011: Nil) from
another Hong Kong listed company client. The non-
executive Director is an independent non-executive
director of the client. The income so derived was
determined by reference to market rates and agreed
on an arm’s length basis.

Asi 'Ié_l}:;l:lpldings Limited
L SREARBRAR
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27.7&IE

PR _E SCBft E26 F 55 Al A 45 & A K AR SN - R
EER T —F+-A=+—BXEMEM
BARRE RZF—F+HAH=1+—8 "
BIHAES T B LTRERE /3,274,000
BT

28.HAELRS

() RZEMBREREMMLT AFLNRS
Sh ARBRFAGEBETETAT

%5 :

() P s AR SR -~ F= - — F
IEEE AEEE—MHAEE LM
RNElZ B P EE®TEHL,543,0007%
U UGS 00078 TE) 2
EEBEBA - FRTEFTAZE
PRAERITES - FIRE ZWA
D2EMEMEE RZEAFEER
i °

(i) S e e e — - —
EEE AEBEBEEZ—HABHEL
MARZEFEESFEL650,000%8
T (ZE——%F: F) zZEBERK
A FNTESRABTF 2B LI
BITES - BB ZWATIZ2ZETN
BmMEE RIEAFEERE o
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28.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28.BAERRRE (&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel, including (b) AEBFZEBEAS (BREAEENTE

executive Directors and key management of the Group:

ERTEEEE) WEFMH

2012 205

—g-=% —B——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT

Short term employee benefits E R EEA 3,024 4,097

Post-employment benefits BB R A 28 47

Equity-settled share option expense S 4 & B SRR A 2 1,023 724
Total compensation paid to BENEEEREAEF B

key management personnel 4,075 4,845

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in

note 7 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2012
B

BA RS AR AR B

—E——H+=-H=+—H

29. €M T RER
RBERR - SELBMTAREAENT :

Financial assets
at fair value

through profit

or loss — held

al Holdings Limited

for trading
BRATER Loans and
BaRIIERN receivables
Financial assets SREE - BEXR Total
SRIEE BEEE PR R IE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET FET
Deposits B e - 100 100
Trade receivables B Z EWGRIE = 1,260 1,260
Financial assets included in SFATERFIE - e &
prepayments, deposits and H h FEURIE )
other receivables SREE - 6,937 6,937
Investments at fair value through 32 A FERIEZR KT
profit or loss ZIRE 26,877 - 26,877
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEENRS - 41 41
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREeFEY - 85,085 85,085
26,877 93,423 120,300
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Notes to Financial Statements Py EL R

31 December 2012 —2—_+—-"A=+—H
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2. €I AER (&)
(Continued)
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
Financial liabilities R S R A 51 B
SR E HEmas
HK$°000
FET
Trade payables B ZENFIE 369
Other financial liabilities HibemBaE 1,956
2,325
2011 Group
—E——F REE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss —
held for trading
BAFER Loans and
BmKR YRR receivables
Financial assets EREE — BER K Total
BREE BHEE=R FEWIRIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FAET
Deposits b - 100 100
Trade receivables 5 e A - 2,088 2,088
Financial assets included in FTATENRIE - EE Rk
prepayments, deposits and EL b fE R IE Y
other receivables EREE = 1,051 1,051
Investments at fair value through  32A F(ER B &=TIE
profit or loss ZRE 28,078 - 28,078
Cash held on behalf of clients KREEFENES - 78 78
Cash and cash equivalents He KRS EEY 5 66,445 66,445
28,078 69,762 97,840
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31 December 2012 —E-—_H+-A=+—H
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 29. SR T AR (&)
(Continued)
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
Financial liabilities SR AN BR
SRIBE HEemBE
HK$°000
FET
Trade payables B S ENHIE 78
Other financial liabilities HEmemas 4:514
4,592
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RRERR SRR IAREBENAT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Company ZA
Financial assets Loans and receivables
SREE EXREWRIE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Due from subsidiaries AN N NG R 44,910 46,711
Financial assets included in FT ATEAS FRIE K A W R IE
prepayments and other receivables e REE 17 4
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEY 44,739 8,221
89,666 54,936
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
SEMAE REERAYIRNSREE
2012 2011
—E——F praet
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FIET
Due to subsidiaries N NG B 180 15
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30. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 30, AT ERAFEER
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the AEERARFTNSH T AMNERERA T
Company’s financial instruments are as follows: BT :
Group NEEF
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AFE
2012 2012 2011
=F—=F ot St —T——F
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET T#ET TFrEIT
Financial assets SREE
Investments at fair value BAFEREZRR
through profit or loss HIRRAIE & 26,877 28,078 26,877 28,078
Company b N

138

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, deposits,
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
balances with subsidiaries approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of the unlisted
investment are estimated using a valuation technique based
upon the recent market transactions and updated for post-
transaction events.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

30. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect
on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which any inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

i

BA RS AR AR B

—E-—_H+-A=+—H

30. AP ERAVFEER ()

DFEER

AEEEHTHZERAETREESRT A
AT -

£ RFEDREREEREBBENER
MHZHRE (REAR) T E

F_& o RVFENEEERDTDFE  HEE
ARRAFEEEAZENMARE
TR EERREEER

= AVEDRGEERDGE - HEE
ARRFEBEEAF EN MR
WA BRI BIET & (TH
BREE)
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30. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value:

Group
As at 31 December 2012

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

30, AFERAFEER (&)

AFEER (4)
BAFEIENEE

e re B S Hlie ST H

Level 1

E—R

HK$°000
TET

Investments at fair value

BAHEREBRRIIRR

Level 3
B=H
HK$’000
FHET

Level 2
et
HK$’000
FET

Total
A5t
HK$°000
FET

through profit or loss ZIRE 25,109 - 1,768 26,877

As at 31 December 2011 e et H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— EZR E=H st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FETT FEIT FET

Investments at fair value EAFEREZRRKRSR

through profit or loss ZE 18,079 — 9,999 28,078

The Company did not have any other financial assets
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3.

The investment classified under fair value hierarchy Level
2 as at 31 December 2011 has been restated as Level 3 to
align with current year presentation.
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30. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 30. AFERAFESER (Z)

(Continued)
AFEER (EZ)
BAFEGTENEE & (&)

S ia s T A=+—HL
FEF=MRTAZEF -

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Investments at
fair value through
profit or loss

RAFERERRK

SRR ZIRE

HK$’000

FET

Opening balance FXEERR 9,999

Settlements wHE (7,575)

Loss recognised in profit or loss RIBE R NTER 2 E518 (656)

Closing balance FREEER 1,768
Total gains for the period including in MRREHARMIEEEENERRIIEZ

profit or loss for assets held at the HRz Wes4asE
end of the reporting period 1,769

FREFHE=F——F+-A=+—AL
FEE=HIAZED -

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Investments at
fair value through
profit or loss

BRATHERERKR

SRR 2R E

HK$°000

FET

Opening balance FHEEER 5

Purchase BE 6,105

Gains recognised in profit or loss RiEmARATER 2 Was 3,894

Closing balance FARER 9,999
Total gains for the period including in R MEBRRAFEEENBRRIIRZ

profit or loss for assets held at the BNz Was 4R gE
end of the reporting period 3,894
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B1.BKEREEBERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise of
cash and short term deposits. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, trade
payables, and other payables and accruals, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and price risk.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Except for providing services to
insolvent companies, it is the Group’s policy that advanced
payments are generally required for new customers. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. It is not market practice to obtain collateral.

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets, which
comprise trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and convertible bonds included in investments
at fair value through profit or loss, arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments. Collateral is generally
not sought on these assets.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to other
receivables and bank balances. As the receivables and bank
balances are largely due from authorised institutions, the
exposure to credit risk is not considered significant.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 1. EREEREREBER (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s only interest-bearing financial instruments are
balances with banks which bear interest at market rates.
Depending on the then perceived cash flow requirements,
the Group’s policy is to maintain the majority of its funds in
demand or short-term bank deposits that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in interest rate.

Of the bank balances, HK$9,336,000 (2011: HK$6,569,000)
is on demand as at 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general increase
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase (2011: increase) the Group's
profit (2011: profit) after tax and increase retained profits
by approximately HK$93,000 (2011: HK$66,000). Other
components of equity would not be affected by the changes
in interest rates. A material decrease in interest rates is not
considered reasonably possible because of the low interest
rate environment.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding to meet its working capital requirements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk arising from individual
investments classified as fair value through profit or loss
(note 18) as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. The Group's
listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange but the
volume of trade at any moment in time may restrict the
liquidity of the investments.

A R @

AEEE -2t EERTARRITAR X
BHSHEGFR - REEEBUEREREZ
BE  AEENBR A RHEHRTE
RENXEPRBATEAZ TAREEK
WMPES -

i SR SR RS - — SR TR T
29,336,000/ ot (—Z — — £ : 6,569,000
BIL) BIEEER

N _FB=o G AT - B ER
F R EF100MEE 2 - AT A H b & i 15
T8 AEEZBRBEERBHN (ZT——F -
HBAD) BEeREM(ZE——F: #N) &
R % A IR & 8 A1 4993,0008 ¢ (= F——
4 : 66,000/ 7T) o H 4 &5 4H K BB 15 15 T
EXMEREHTE  c ANEFERE A5
ERATAEBRT @ FIEKIE T B A48
MBS o

REE SRR

ARENEEABBERNNESERRH
BEASEY FASEREURBEEY
RIS -

AEEREECRABREREE (PIWE
Z EWGRIR) MEIHI B LA RTEFHE & RGP
SREREXREREESRRNEAR

AREBHEERAR-_Z——ER_F——F+
ZA=+—8"  BARKRESEAEATER
BaKRIEZRE (MiE18) MELRKE
BeER - AEBEM EMRE T RE R L
e ERERREEORIEEAERHIEERN
BER -
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31 December 2012

31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Because of the short duration of the contractual maturity
and low interest rate environment, the carrying value of the
Group’s financial liabilities approximate to the undiscounted
payments. The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

NMBEABREEEEREE (&)

RBES@EE (F)

HREHIHBEREREMERE  A&EH
MER B EEERRRRMNRELN - AEE
RB|ERARBRBENRERNTNEHMAE
EEEIE R

Group 2012
rRHE —F-—=F
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
RER DPR={EA st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade payables g S EMNRIE a1 328 369
Financial liabilities included in ST AE M FER TR
other payables e A& 1,079 - 1,079
1,120 328 1,448
2011
ZE—F
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
REK LR=1EH a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEIT FET
Trade payables B S ERRIE 78 = 78
Financial liabilities included in ST AE M FEN FIE
other payables ME/aE 924 = 924
1,002 - 1,002
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES N.UEEREEREREBE (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Company
/NG

RBESEE (F)

ARBRBERRRBRBEORBANTOE
BEEMSIRERINT

2012
—E—_F
On demand

BER
HK$°000
FET

Due to subsidiaries JERIB B A R E 180

2011
—T——F
On demand

HK$°000
FAET

Due to subsidiaries FERTH B A A5 E 151

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to price
risk arising from individual investments classified as fair value
through profit or loss (note 18) as at 31 December 2012 and
2011. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. The Group’s unlisted investment
is estimated using a valuation technique based upon the
recent market transactions and updated for post-transaction
events.

BERER

BERRKRAZTFZATERRERZ KT R
BEREFEEZSMALHRER - AEEE
BER—Z——FRZT——F+=A=+
—BEEEESERARATFENEREA
PR 2 & (H3E18) MEERBRER
AEBH EHRECEHM LT RIZRERE
Rz MIBHREMGE - NEBHIFELTRE
DEMIETHER U IREERGEE @ A
KRR S 1EEHEF o
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

31.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Price risk (Continued)

The market equity index for the following stock exchanges,
at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the
year to the end of the reporting period, and its highest and
lowest points during the year were as follows:

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

NMBEABREEEEREE (&)

BEERRE (&)

AT T8 5 R 5 FARE RS R
R BEERHERKHTHEREREB K%
EMHERERBNFAN KSR KELA
P

31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2012 2012 2011 2011
=F-—=F =F-—=F & Ciaras g
+=HA=+—8H SIvp vl —— 5 =+—H =iz EAL

Hong Kong - B — BAERR
Hang Seng Index 22,657 22,719/18,057 18,434  24,469/16,170
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% TRETEMBEMESERHTERTHB

change in the fair values of the investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

BAEEA > REZ RN FEE10%ZF G
B (RBEERHEHROEEETF) -

Carrying
amount of
investments

REM

Change
in profit
before tax
BRBE AT

o I 24 B
HK$°000
FHET

Change
in equity
RIESE
HK$'000

FET

AREIE
HK$°000

FET

2012 —= -z

Investments at fair value through profit or loss:

BAFERERER

PIRRAIIZE :
— Hong Kong listed equity investments — REAB LT
g R &

— Unlisted investment — JEETIRE
2011 —T——F
Investments at fair value through profit or loss:  #ZAFEREREE

FBRHIRE :
— Hong Kong listed equity investments — REB LW
IR E
— Unlisted investment — JELETIRE
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1,768 177 177
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 1. EREEREREBER (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

A subsidiary of the Group is regulated by the Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC"”) and is required to comply
with certain minimum capital requirements according to the
rules of the SFC. The required liquid capital according to
the rules of the SFC was HK$3,000,000 as at 31 December
2012 and 2011. The Group has an experienced compliance
officer and the compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations is monitored by management. The principal
roles of the compliance officer are to monitor the daily
financial status and to review internal control of the Group
regularly to ensure the Company’s regulated subsidiary is in
compliance with related regulations. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

EXEHE

AEBEAEENTIZERAREARER
RNFBREXBREFRRENER L X
EM TR E X R RARE R BREE -

AR EEEEE AR B RBEEIRN
MIAREEME RS ENARE - Eﬁ
R BEEARE  ANEETHERRRK
RS ~ MBREREEANKEITHA -

AEE—HNBRARZBFLFRPEEHER
ézﬁqﬁ%QDﬁa’Mmfﬁ%Qﬁm
BITETHREEARBRENEE -HNZT—=
i&_i——¢+_ﬂ:+—a'ﬂﬁﬁ%
FrHRA - HEMRB)E A A3,000,0008 7T
REBBEE —BEREHREM - METIEH
BRAREROBRANXEEEET - 5 E
FHEEBE AT BT RN TR
BEAREENIPEIEABRAR R Z ZHEE W
BRARESTHEER -REBEE_T——FK
—T——%+-—A=1t—HLFE BEA
REER - BUR RIZFr LA
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2012

31.

32.

142

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group’s policy
is to maintain the current ratio above one and to obtain
additional capital for general working capital and business
development purposes as considered necessary by the Board.
The current ratios at the end of each reporting period were

B RS R AR B

—E2-——F+=-A=+—8

NMBEABREEEEREE (&)

EXEE (&)

AEEERARBLE (RBDEERARDE
B) BEEEAR  AEENBRRERRF R L
EAR— UREFERRETERINER
SNER - NE—REEBESREBRRER
& MEMSHRORELLRMT ¢

as follows:
2012 2011
—E—_—F . e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Trade receivables B ZREINFIA 1,260 2,088
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TBIFIE * & &
H At EUFRIR 7,258 1,352
Investments at fair value through profit or loss Z2AT{ER SR 7= 5IIARHY
®E& 26,877 28,078
Cash held on behalf of clients REFHENES 41 78
Cash and cash equivalents Be MR FEY 85,085 66,445
Total current assets MENEELRTE 120,521 98,041
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B ERIE 369 78
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIEREE A 2,586 4,514
Tax payable JERNTIE 1,928 3,277
Total current liabilities BB EREE 4,883 7,869
Current ratios mEhLL 24.68 12.46
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 32. M HwmR 2

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 4 March 2013.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the five financial years, as extracted from the

published audited financial statements is set out below.

‘]

MBHE

sk B B T B FAZ I 1 R A0 A S [ T BB
BERNRE BERBBEHMEHIINOT

Year ended 31 December

BEt=-A=t—-RAILFE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
il Dbl —T——&F —T-TF —TTNF ZTTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FEr FEr FEr
RESULTS E
REVENUE WA 20,161 48,266 22,600 50,175 14,145
Other income and gains Bl A RS 970 491 383 573 284
Operating expenses AR (22,709) (23,692) (22,541) (17,568) (11,425)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE BT A (1,578) 25,065 44) 33,180 3,004
Income tax expenses Fifsfim> (41) (4,339) (923) (668) (447)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ~ Zx A\ BB IR iEz
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEAEBGLEE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS  (fE538) s3I
OF THE COMPANY (1,619) 20,726 (481) 32,512 2,557

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE

2012
—E—_—F

HK$000
TET

As at 31 December
I+ = T
2011 2010 2009 2008
T _T-Ff _TTNE FTENF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T 5T T

TOTAL ASSETS WEE 122,428 100,340 73,651 47,535 20,083
TOTAL LIABILITIES weE (4,883) (7,869) (3,546) (4,686) (5,946)
117,545 92,471 70,105 42,849 14,137
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Note: The summary of the combined results of the Group for
each of the two years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008 and of the assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2009 and 2008 have been extracted from the Company’s
listing prospectus dated 11 June 2010. The audited
results of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011 and the audited assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are those
set out in the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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